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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
NOTICE IS GIVEN that the Annual General MeeƟng of  

AthleƟcs Canterbury will be held on  

Wednesday 27th July 2022 at 7.30 p.m.  

at the Cashmere Club,  

Colombo Street, Christchurch 

AGENDA 

1 Roll Call 

2 Apologies for Absence 

3 Approval of Proxies 

4 Approval of Minutes of Annual General MeeƟng held 29th July 2021 

5 ConsideraƟon and Approval of Annual Report 

6 ConsideraƟon and Approval of Annual Financial Statements 

7 ConsideraƟon of NoƟces of MoƟon 

8 ConsideraƟon of Remits 

9 ConsideraƟon of any RecommendaƟon for Life Membership 

10 ElecƟon of Officers and Board for 2022 / 2023 

11 Seƫng of Canterbury Centre Club AffiliaƟon Fees and Athlete Levies 

12 General Business: 

 
Daniel Reese 
Secretary 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that the Annual General MeeƟng of  

AthleƟcs Canterbury, for Track and Field Delegates will be held on  

Wednesday 27th July 2022 (Start Ɵme: following AthleƟcs Canterbury AGM meeƟng).  

at the Cashmere Club,  

Colombo Street, Christchurch 

 
AGENDA 

1 Roll Call 

2 Apologies for Absence 

3 Approval of Proxies 

4 Approval of Minutes of Annual General MeeƟng held 29th July 2021 

5 ConsideraƟon and Approval of Annual Report 

6 ConsideraƟon and Approval of Annual Financial Statements 

7 ConsideraƟon of Remits 

8 ElecƟon of Track and Field CommiƩee for 2022 / 2023 

9 ElecƟon of Track and Field Selectors for 2022 / 2023 

10 ConsideraƟon of Season’s Programme for 2022 / 2023 

11 General Business 

 
Ruth Liong 
Chair of Track and Field CommiƩee 
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NominaƟons for AthleƟcs Canterbury Board for 2022 / 2023 season 

Chair: Andrew Stark  

Board Members: Avril Davies Victor Gamperle 

 Diana Ismagilova Tim Jones 

 Paul Nicholls Daniel Reese 

 Haidee Straƞord  

NominaƟons for AthleƟcs Canterbury Track & Field CommiƩee for 2021 / 2022 season 

Chairman: Ruth Liong  

Secretary   

Treasurer   

CommiƩee: Adrienne Bruce Terry Lomax 

 Paul Nicholls Andrew Stark 

 Brian Theobald  

   

Track & Field Selectors:   

   

(Note:  Secretary & Treasurer posiƟons are appointed by the Board) 

PROPOSED CENTRE CLUB AFFILIATION FEE & INDIVIDUAL MEMBER LEVIES 

1 APRIL 2023 to 31 MARCH 2024 

    

Current Individual Levies: ANZ Fee AthleƟcs Canty Total 

CompeƟƟve Members 20 & over $66.00 $30.00 $96.00 

CompeƟƟve Members 18 ‐ 19 $51.00 $20.00 $71.00 

CompeƟƟve Members 15 ‐ 17 $51.00 $20.00 $71.00 

CompeƟƟve Member 7 ‐ 14 $35.00 $10.00 $45.00 

CompeƟƟve or Social Member 6 & under $10.00 $10.00 $20.00 

Social Member 15 & over $36.00 $10.00 $46.00 

Volunteer $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

    

Proposed Individual Levies for 2023 / 2024: ANZ Fee AthleƟcs Canty Total 

CompeƟƟve Members 20 & over $66.00 $40.00 $106.00 

CompeƟƟve Members 18 ‐ 19 $51.00 $30.00 $81.00 

CompeƟƟve Members 15 ‐ 17 $51.00 $30.00 $81.00 

CompeƟƟve Member 7 ‐ 14 $35.00 $20.00 $55.00 

CompeƟƟve or Social Member 6 & under $10.00 $20.00 $30.00 

Social Member 15 & over $36.00 $20.00 $56.00 

Volunteer $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

CENTRE CLUB AFFILIATION FEE = $100.00  

Note:  Athletics New Zealand fees have as yet not been confirmed .... 

 *An ‘activity of competitive nature’ could include Inter-Club Events, Centre Championships, etc.  
 **Some clubs have ‘friendly, non-competitive runs’, these are considered to be social for membership 
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Life Members of AthleƟcs Canterbury: 

Mrs P A Boland Mrs S A Brown Mrs A R Davies Mrs B M Jago 

Miss A L Kennedy Mrs V I Young OBE C M Brown J D Gamblin 

V Gamperle E J Gilliver W E HasƟngs K W R Jago 

B Leadley J P McBrearty D W Mackenzie (MNZM) R F B Perry 

D Reese T A SpiƩle R W G Syme (ONZM) I D Teague 

B N J Towart A S Tucker G G Vivian G R Young 

AthleƟcs Canterbury Officers for 2021 ‐ 2022 

AthleƟcs Canterbury Board:  

President: Andrew Stark   

Board Members: AnneƩe Campbell  Avril Davies Victor Gamperle 

 Paul Nicholls Daniel Reese Haidee Straƞord 

 

Secretary: Daniel Reese Treasurer: Victor Gamperle 

RegistraƟon Secretary:     Chris Rowe 

AthleƟcs Canterbury Track & Field Sub‐CommiƩee:  

Chairperson: Ruth Liong   

Secretary:   Treasurer: Victor Gamperle 

CommiƩee: Adrienne Bruce Terry Lomax Paul Nicholls 

 Andrew Stark Brian Theobald  

AthleƟcs Canterbury Cross‐Country & Road Sub‐CommiƩee:  

Chairperson: AnneƩe Campbell Treasurer: Victor Gamperle 

Secretary:  Amy De Wit Race Secretary: Anne Kennedy 

CommiƩee: John Gamblin Sandie Gamperle Peter King 

 Robyn Perkins Kevin Prendergast Daniel Reese 

Canterbury Masters AthleƟcs Inc: 

President: Andrew Stark   

Secretary: BernadeƩe Jago Treasurer: Anna Lynch 

CommiƩee: Nick Bolton Jonny Baird Beverley Church 

Canterbury Children's AthleƟcs AssociaƟon: 

President: MarƟn ScoƩ Secretary: Gail Krsinic 

Treasurer: Steffany Davis   

Mid‐South Canterbury Sub‐Centre: 

Chairperson: Mark Peters  Secretary / Treasurer: Helen Mackle 

Key Personnel:    

General Manager: Ian Thomas Officials Educator: Ruth Liong 

Honorary Lawyer: Richard SproƩ   

Reviewer: Smith & Jack Chartered Accountants  

Thomas Houghton (Intern)     

 Janis Russell   
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Athletics Canterbury Annual Report for 2021 / 2022 Andrew Stark 

The 2021‐2022 years has been another challenging year for the sport.  As we moved in and out of Covid 19 
gathering restricƟons, several events in the winter season had to be modified so we could keep within the 
limits.  Similarly, when the traffic light system was introduced in the summer season, several interclub 
events were run in sessions to comply with the rules.  The introducƟon of the vaccine pass to compete at 
our events did not please everyone.  However, we were simply following the recommendaƟons at the Ɵme.  
All going well, those days are gone! 

I would like to acknowledge Ian Thomas, our General Manager, who had to decipher the Covid restricƟons 
via informaƟon received from numerous sources such as SportNZ, Sport Canterbury, AthleƟcs NZ and CCC.  
This informaƟon was shared with the cross‐country & road and the track & field commiƩees.  Members of 
both commiƩees were then required to create detailed procedural plans, outlining how our events could 
conƟnue.  Several Ɵmes as new restricƟons were introduced, modified or removed, last minute 
adjustments needed to be made.  As far as our athleƟc community were concerned, it all seemed to flow 
smoothly, and this is credit to those who created the ‘plans’.  Well done to all teams involved! 

Being part of the wider group of AthleƟcs Canterbury plays an important role for many of us, either as an 
administer, an official, a coach, an athlete or as a supporter.  It gives us a connecƟon with others and makes 
you feel ‘part of a team’.  Giving back to the community helps many of us to break the boredom of our 
normal lives, which creates a ‘feel good’ feeling within.  However, at Ɵmes it can feel overwhelming for 
some in posiƟons of responsibility.  I regularly remind the Board that we are all volunteers, that whatever 
we decide as the 'way forward' for our sport, it has to be achievable in such a way that we all not end up 
over‐stressed and burnt out. 

Many of you have been around for years!  There is no doubƟng your passion and experƟse, parƟcularly 
those with key roles, especially in the more technical areas of the sport.  The on‐going challenge is to aƩract 
and retain new people to these more specialised areas of the sport.  It is not sustainable going forward if we 
do not do this, so the challenge for us all is to pass on our knowledge before it is too late.   

During the past four years, we have been more professional about how we operate, becoming more aware 
of the difference between governance and operaƟonal roles.  This is not always easy as many on the Board 
also have roles on a Working Group or an OperaƟonal CommiƩee. 

Achievements during the 2021‐2022 season: 

 Governance, Strategic & Work Plans, Working Groups & OperaƟonal CommiƩees:  The Board 
conƟnues to acƟvely engage with all sectors of the sport, seeking ideas and input as to the strategic 
direcƟon of the sport.  This year we uƟlised Sport Canterbury to facilitate two meeƟngs with the 
wider athleƟc community.  Following these meeƟngs, the 2022‐2028 plan was created and it is in the 
final process of being completed.  It will be posted on the website soon.   

We have also enlisted the help of Sport Canterbury to review how the Board operates, to provide 
guidance and educaƟon in several areas to ensure we are operaƟng up to our potenƟal.  This is 
funded by Sport Canterbury and we see it as a valuable iniƟaƟve going forward.  The assistance has 
yet to begin, and I will report on this at next year's AGM. 

With only one paid fullƟme employee, we need to be realisƟc about what we can achieve.  With the 
introducƟon of the Working Groups, we do have more members involved with making things 
‘happen’.  However, it sƟll relies on the goodwill of those involved.  We are always on the lookout for 
more people to join a working group or an operaƟonal commiƩee, so please step forward if you can 
help. 

AthleƟcs New Zealand have signed up to the Sport NZ 'Balance is BeƩer' programme and we fully 
support this iniƟaƟve.  While this does not affect our senior athletes, we all must be mindful as to just 
what is appropriate physical acƟvity, parƟcularly for our young athletes.  Any changes we make in 
Canterbury will be guided by advice from AthleƟcs NZ and their Young Advisory CommiƩee.  Craig 
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Brown is currently a member of that commiƩee.   

Our two key operaƟonal commiƩees (Track & Field and Cross‐Country & Road) conƟnue to focus on 
creaƟng and delivering events.  Their aim is to make their respecƟve events a posiƟve experience for all 
who aƩend.  This includes officials, coaches and spectators. 

The Board is also fully supporƟve of the Mid‐South Canterbury Sub‐Centre, the Canterbury Children's 
AthleƟcs & the Canterbury Masters AthleƟcs CommiƩees and their involvement in the sport in 
delivering quality events to their target markets.  I would like to acknowledge and thank all operaƟonal 
commiƩees for the work they do.  A full report from each CommiƩee is in this booklet. 

 MarkeƟng & PromoƟonal Working Group:  This group has been led by Robyn Perkins.  So far all 
markeƟng has been directed at our non‐stadia events.  The main purpose has been to aƩract new 
parƟcipants to an event and then encourage them to join a club.  However, it is worth noƟng that a 
secondary benefit of the markeƟng is to make our current members more aware of what is on, with 
the hope we can aƩract more of them to aƩend our events too. 

It has been a challenging year, given that the ‘playing field’ changed several Ɵmes due to Covid 19 
restricƟons affecƟng our ability to deliver some events.  I am sure that having Covid 19 within the 
community meant that some potenƟal compeƟtors stayed away to keep ‘safe’.  It does seem difficult 
to aƩract new people on mass to our events.  Given the number of other providers of non‐stadia 
events, this is probably not surprising.  However, when we targeted selected key events, such as the 
Takahe to Akaroa Relay, the markeƟng made a significant difference to the number of teams that 
entered.  Had it not been for Covid, this would have been the 2021 NaƟonal Road Relay Championship 
event.  It would have been interesƟng to see how many teams would have competed.  Thank you to 
those involved in this group. 

While technically not part of this group, during the past few months a sub‐commiƩee was created to 
look at how we can beƩer uƟlise the Bill Richards Marathon Trust.  Since then, a new website has 
been created and the criteria for receiving a grant has been formalised.  This is a great iniƟaƟve, so well 
done to the team involved. 

 Coaches Working Group:  This group has been led by Dion Andrews.  During the year this group 
engaged with AthleƟcs NZ, who have created a series of educaƟonal modules.  These are finally being 
made available to clubs and Centres.  Several of our coaches have been trained by AthleƟcs NZ as 
Coach Educators to deliver these modules.  The current plan is to use the AthleƟcs NZ modules to 
upskill ‘beginning’ coaches in the finer points of coaching an event, and at the same Ɵme, the Coaching 
Working Group will upskill the coaches in the ‘soŌ skills’ of how to coach.  It is early days yet and I look 
forward to receiving more feedback as progress conƟnues.  It is a posiƟve start.  Thank you to those 
involved in this group. 

 Officials Working Group:  This group has been led by Brian Theobald.  Over the past year, most of our 
current officials have been contacted and completed a quesƟonnaire as to what they hope to achieve 
as an official.  Some are happy just helping at events, while others have greater aspiraƟons to officiate 
at events overseas.  We cater for all and we do our best to offer educaƟonal opportuniƟes throughout 
the season, as and when appropriate.  The ongoing challenge is to aƩract new officials.  I know I have 
menƟoned this before, our sport is dependent on new officials coming forward parƟcularly when 
endeavouring to run a track & field meeƟng. 

 Athletes Working Group:  This group has been led by Ieuan van der Peet, with assistance from Ian 
Thomas.  We are sƟll unsure as to how this group can best help our athletes, so it is work in progress at 
the moment. 

 Finances ‐ Funding & Sponsorship:  Previously this was a Working Group.  We have renamed this as 
simply the Finance CommiƩee and it is lead by our treasurer Victor Gamperle.  With input from the 
General Manager, the Board, the Working Groups and our operaƟonal commiƩees, we now create an 
annual budget for each sector, based on the goals and objecƟves as idenƟfied via our Strategic Plan.  
We are regularly reviewing the reports we can create through Xero to ensure they are easy to 
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understand and offer full transparency.  As has been the case for a few years now, we produce 
consolidated accounts, excluding the Canterbury Childrens and Canterbury Masters acƟviƟes, which 
remain separate enƟƟes. 

Our intenƟon is that all funding applicaƟons go via this group, to provide a coordinated approach to 
ensure we maximise our funding opportuniƟes.  We are fortunate that we have a good working 
relaƟonship with the Rata FoundaƟon, the New Zealand Community Trust and CCC who together 
provide the bulk of the funding required to retain the General Manager's role. 

With Covid 19 restricƟng many businesses, it has proven more difficult to obtain addiƟonal signage at 
Nga Puna Wai.  However, we successfully approached Gary Cockram Hyundai who have agreed to 
sponsor our sport by providing us with a car.  Thank you to Dougal Cockram for making this happen. 

 ConsƟtuƟon & By‐Laws:  The AthleƟcs Canterbury ConsƟtuƟon and By‐laws are now up to date.  
However, this is an on‐going process and changes will be made as and when required.  This role has 
been co‐ordinated by Daniel Reese.  I would like to also acknowledge the help we have received from 
Rod Syme, Don Mackenzie and John McBrearty (AthleƟcs New Zealand Rules CommiƩee), to ensure 
any changes we make are appropriate.  This group is also responsible for checking all record 
applicaƟons.   

 CommunicaƟon with Members:  We conƟnue to communicate with our members, using Facebook 
regularly to promote events & report on the successes of our athletes.  The General Manager creates a 
monthly newsleƩer and uses Facebook posts as and when required in an effort to keep everyone 
beƩer informed.   

The funcƟonality of the main AthleƟcs Canterbury website has its limitaƟons.  Keeping it up to date is a 
Ɵme‐consuming task and this is currently overseen by Daniel Reese.  My role within track & field is to 
promote that side of the sport via the website.  AnneƩe Campbell has taken over the role of keeping 
the non‐stadia event websites up to date, which are all linked to the main website. 

 CANRUN:  This year we conƟnued to offer non‐stadia community events within our events, under the 
CANRUN umbrella.  The aim is to aƩract community / non‐club runners to our sport.  We obtained 
funding that allowed us to support and coach three female high school teams, who competed in the 
Takahe to Akaroa Relay.  The feedback was very posiƟve, and we will repeat this iniƟaƟve in 2022. 

This season we offered a series of five CanRun Track & Field Twilight meeƟngs at Nga Puna Wai during 
November / December.  However, due to the cancellaƟon the NaƟonal Secondary School 
Championships (December 2021), only three meeƟngs were held due to lack of demand.  However, I 
am sure these will conƟnue next season.  

New Board procedures going forward:   Two years ago we talked about introducing an alternaƟve way of 
elecƟng Board members, aligned with the elecƟon process used by AthleƟcs New Zealand.  We have agreed 
that each Board member is elected for a period of two years, with the opƟon for two further terms of two 
years, a total of six consecuƟve years.  At any given AGM, no more than half the Board is up for elecƟon.  
Over the years we have not exactly been inundated with nominaƟons, so I will be interested to see how this 
works.  We will review this process and potenƟally make the appropriate ConsƟtuƟonal changes next year. 

The current Board is made up of myself as Chair.  It is a challenging role and I am looking to step back from 
the role within the next year or so.  The challenge is finding a replacement.  My passion is track & field, both 
as an organiser, but more importantly as a compeƟtor.  I am keen to work with the commiƩee to maximise 
the use of Ngā Puna Wai by creaƟng more community / school events, but I also want the opportunity to 
compete more regularly during the season. 

Victor Gamperle is in his second year on the Board, with the Board elected role of Treasurer.  This is a 
demanding role, with very liƩle down Ɵme throughout the year.  Victor single handedly covers all sectors of 
the sport and overseas the creaƟon of our annual budget.  Making sure all transacƟons are coded correctly, 
the task of creaƟng the consolidated accounts ready for 'review' has been a challenging exercise.  The Board 
is currently looking at ways that this responsibility can be shared. 



9 

Daniel Reese was elected from within the Board as Secretary.  Daniel manages the website & Facebook page 
with a bit help from others, plus has worked on ConsƟtuƟon & By‐Laws updates.  He is also heavily involved 
in the non‐stadia secƟon of the sport and is also on the Cross‐Country & Road CommiƩee.  To allow him to 
be more acƟvely engaged in Board meeƟng discussions, during the year Liz van Til was appointed the Board 
minute secretary.  This role was previously done by BernadeƩe Jago, who has opted to step back so she can 
fully support Kevin. 

AnneƩe Campbell is the Chair of the Cross‐Country & Road CommiƩee.  She has been the driving force 
behind CanRun, the success of the MarkeƟng & CommunicaƟon Working Group and working with the Bill 
Richards Marathon Trust.  This year AnneƩe is stepping down from the Board.  During her Ɵme on the Board, 
she has displayed excellent governance and business skills and ‘forced’ us to all liŌ our game.  It is through 
her iniƟaƟves that we have the Working Groups in place and her aƩenƟon to detail has ensured our Strategic 
Plan and associated Board Work Plan are as professional as they can be.  She has been fully supporƟve of me 
personally and while we may not always agree, we have had a posiƟve working relaƟonship.  While AnneƩe 
will no longer be on the Board, I am sure she will hold us to account going forward and will assist us further if 
required. 

Avril Davies has been on the Board for numerous years.  As an acƟve official, she regularly travels to major 
events throughout New Zealand and oŌen to the Oceania Championships every second year.  She has helped 
co‐ordinate the Awards FuncƟon, along with Daniel Reese and Ian Thomas, and sits on the Officials Working 
Group. 

Haidee Straƞord is in her second year on the Board.  She has had a change of jobs during the year and with 
two young children, balancing all the demands this involved has been a challenge.  She has brought fresh 
ideas to the table via her experience in sports management and governance and has made a posiƟve 
contribuƟon. 

Tom Houghton has aƩended Board meeƟngs as a non‐voƟng intern, giving him an opportunity to learn more 
about governance in sport.  He has also been involved in the Bill Richards Marathon Trust.  The aim of the 
Trust is to invest in emerging athletes with an interest in marathon running.  InformaƟon about the Trust can 
be found on the AthleƟcs Canterbury website under ‘About Us / Awards’. 

The General Manager’s Role – Ian Thomas:  Since the creaƟon of this role in 2018, I have been charged with 
managing Ian.  This has been a learning experience for us both.  I believe we have a very posiƟve working 
relaƟonship and we oŌen have daily contact during the week.  The feedback I receive from all organisaƟons 
we interact with, indicate to me that Ian is doing a great job on our behalf.  It is a huge job for one person, 
and ideally we should have more paid staff to support the GM.  However, on‐going funding for addiƟonal 
roles is always a challenge and is something we could aim for in the future. 

Sponsorship and AdverƟsing: 

The sport would struggle to survive without the generous support of our sponsors.  Thank you to Shoe Clinic 
and Asics who sponsor the various 'Athlete of the Week' awards throughout the year and XCM Clothing who 
assisted with Official's uniforms. 

As menƟoned before Gary Cockram Hyundai supports the sport by providing the General Manager with a car.  
I look forward to this being an on‐going associaƟon. 

Special thank you to the Rata FoundaƟon, New Zealand Community Trust & Christchurch City Council for 
assisƟng with funding the General Manager’s role.  I would also like to acknowledge Air Rescue, Mainland 
FoundaƟon and Lion FoundaƟon who were the main sponsors of the Takahe to Akaroa Relay.   

Awards: 

The annual AthleƟcs Canterbury Awards funcƟon was postponed from its usual May date, due to the Covid 
19 Level 4 lockdown.  We finally managed to hold a very successful evening in October 2021   
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The 2021 ORIX NZ / Sports Canterbury Sports Awards were cancelled and then replaced with an online 
version, spread out over three nights in June 2022.  AthleƟcs Canterbury had the following category winners:  

¨ Blackwells Mazda Official of the Year Award  ‐  Ruth Liong (joint winner) 

¨ AnsƟce Optometrists Para Athlete of the Year  ‐  William Stedman (joint winner) 

  

********************** 

During the past twelve months several long standing members of the AthleƟcs Canterbury community 
passed away. 

Bob HeselƟne, Glen Haszard, Tom Crossen, Gordon Irvine, Vel Lomax, John Shivas, Stan Jelley 

  

Finally … the success of our sport relies heavily on dedicated and passionate volunteers.  On behalf of the 
athletes I would like to take this opportunity to thank all sectors of the sport who have contributed to the 
running of our sport.  Full reports from each sector are also included in the AGM Booklet. 
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The Edmond Champagne Trophy 
Most outstanding athlete at the Canterbury Track & Field Championships 

Julia Burnham 

Arthur Grayburn Cup ‐ Most outstanding javelin thrower Abbey Moody 

Technical Club Trophy (Female) ‐ Most meritorious performance in either shot 
put, discus or hammer by a female athlete 

Lauren Bruce 

Technical Club Trophy (Male) ‐ Most meritorious performance in either 400m, 
800m, 1500m or one mile by a male athlete 

Liam O’Donnell 

The O’Grady Trophy 
Most outstanding track & field athlete sƟll aƩending school 

Asher PeƩengell‐Brand 

E.E. Mayes Memorial Trophy 
Awarded to an U20 athlete for performance, sportsmanship & contribuƟon to 
the sport. 

Tapenisa Havea 

R.H. Harbison Memorial Cup 
Awarded to a senior athlete for performance, sportsmanship & contribuƟon to 
the sport. 

Hamish Kerr 

Sprinter of the Year Rosie Elliot 

Middle Distance Athlete of the Year 
Kiera Hall  

&  Rosaria Gibson 

Distance Athlete of the Year Connor Melton 

Hurdler of the Year Julia Burnham 

Thrower of the Year Tom Walsh 

Jumper of the Year Hamish Kerr 

Para Athlete of the Year William Stedman 

Combined Events Athlete of the Year ChrisƟna Ryan 

Walker of the Year Courtney Ruske 

Cross Country Runner of the Year Charlie HazleƩ 

Road Runner of the Year Andy Good 

Secondary School Non Stadia Athlete of the Year Angus Sevier 

Junior Non Stadia Athlete of the Year Charlie HazleƩ 

Senior Non Stadia Athlete of the Year Chris Dryden 

Community Coach of the Year Jill Morrison 

Valdemars Briedis Memorial Cup for Coach of the Year Terry Lomax 

New Official of the Year Beth Hunter 

Official of the Year Dave Clarke 

Merit Award for ExcepƟonal Service to AthleƟcs: Reg BrockeƩ 

Junior Athlete of the Year Asher PeƩengell‐Brand 

Senior Athlete of the Year Hamish Kerr 

AthleƟcs Canterbury Sports Award FuncƟon: 

This year the Awards FuncƟon were held at Gary Cockram Hyundai showroom.   

CongratulaƟons to the following award recipients: 
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EnƟty InformaƟon  
AthleƟcs Canterbury Incorporated for the year ended 31 March 2022 

 

Legal Name of EnƟty 
 

AthleƟcs Canterbury Incorporated 
 

EnƟty Type and Legal Basis 
 

Charitable Trust and Registered Charity 
 

RegistraƟon Number 
 

CC39446 

 

EnƟty's Purpose or Mission 
 

To lead and inspire parƟcipaƟon, development and excellence in our sport. 

 

EnƟty Structure 
 

The ConsƟtuƟon states that the affairs of the AssociaƟon be governed by an elected Board consisƟng of a Chairperson, plus up to six 
commiƩee members.   The Treasurer and Secretary are appointed by the Board. 

 
The governance of the sport is managed by the Board.  Four Working Groups assist the Board to deliver their strategic outcomes.  The 
delivery of the sport is via the following operaƟonal commiƩees, the Track and Field CommiƩee, the Cross‐Country and Road CommiƩee and 
the Mid South Canterbury Sub‐Centre (Timaru and surrounding region).  Canterbury Childrens AthleƟcs is a associate member of AthleƟcs 
Canterbury who organise and deliver events to our younger members.  All commiƩee members are volunteers.  Numerous other volunteers 
support the associaƟon with its various acƟviƟes and events throughout the year. 

 
There is one full Ɵme General Manager's role which started 1st August 2018.  There is two part‐Ɵme contract roles,  a RegistraƟon Secretary 
and Track & Field Interclub setup role. 

 

Main Sources of EnƟty's Cash and Resources 
 

The AssociaƟon receives its income from registraƟons, race entry fees, grants and donaƟons. 

 

Main Methods Used by EnƟty to Raise Funds 
 

Generally, the AssociaƟon does not formally fund‐raise. The proceeds from locally authorised athleƟcs events and registraƟons cover the 
cost of running events, with minimal to no expected surplus. 

 
The AssociaƟon has successfully approached three organisaƟons for grants to cover the cost of the General Manager's role.  The AssociaƟon 
has used a markeƟng company to assist with non‐stadia race sponsorship, plus sort grants to cover the cost running non‐stadia events.  Any 
larger purchases of new or replacement capital equipment items is generally funded by grants. 

 

Reviewer 
 

Smith & Jack Chartered Accountants 
34 Birmingham Drive,  
Christchurch 

 

EnƟty's Reliance on Volunteers and Donated Goods or Services 
 

The AssociaƟon is almost completely reliant on volunteers, who contribute to the running of the Board, Track and Field CommiƩee and 
Cross‐Country and Road CommiƩee, organising local athleƟcs events and organising and accompanying athletes to various meeƟngs. 

 

Bankers 
 

Westpac 
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Statement of Service Performance 
AthleƟcs Canterbury Incorporated for the year ended 31 March 2021 

'What did we do?', 'When did we do it?'  

DescripƟon of EnƟty's Outcomes 
The objecƟve of AthleƟcs Canterbury is to foster and support the sport of athleƟcs in the Canterbury & West Coast 
regions and support the Mid‐South Canterbury Sub‐Centre based in Timaru as our representaƟve in that region.  
These objecƟves are delivered in the following areas: 

Governance: 
During the past financial year, we have displayed adaptability through challenges Ɵmes due to Covid 19.  We have 
conƟnued to strengthen our leadership, engaging with our athleƟcs community, and updaƟng our Strategic Plan 
accordingly to ensure it aligns with the needs of our athleƟc community and the wider community as large. 

We have encouraged more of our community members to be involved in enhancing what we offer, through the 
Working Groups we now operate.  The following five working groups listed below are charged with invesƟgaƟng and 
making recommendaƟons to the Board, via the General Manager, as to how we best implement our strategic plan 
objecƟves.   

 MarkeƟng & CommunicaƟons Group 

 Funding & Sponsorship Group 

 AthleƟcs Pathway Group 

 Officials Pathway Group 

 Coaches Pathway Group 

Now that the Nga Puna Wai venue is up and running, we have merged the Nga Puna Wai AcƟvaƟon Group within the 
Track & Field CommiƩee. 

The delivery of the sport is dependant of two commiƩees, i.e. the Track & Field CommiƩee and the Cross‐Country & 
Road CommiƩee.  We acknowledge the Canterbury Childrens AthleƟcs AssociaƟon, who are charged with delivering 
the sport to our younger members.  Canterbury Masters AthleƟcs AssociaƟon is essenƟally merged within AthleƟcs 
Canterbury as all of their members compete within the events we organised.  We also appreciate the role the Mid‐
South Canterbury Sub‐Centre who organise and deliver the sport on our behave in the Timaru and surrounding 
districts. 

We have acƟvely engaged with AthleƟcs New Zealand to ensure we deliver events that align with their requirements.   

We conƟnue to be acƟvely involved with the Christchurch City Council and the Ngā Puna Wai Manager to ensure the 
new home of athleƟcs built at Nga Puna Wai is future proofed and fit for purpose, not just for the athleƟc community, 
but also for the wider community. 

The success of AthleƟcs Canterbury depends on the conƟnuaƟon of the General Manager’s role.  Over the past four 
years we have strengthened our relaƟonship with the Rata FoundaƟon and the New Zealand Community Trust, to 
ensure this role can conƟnue.  We acƟvely seek new sponsor and apply for grants as and when appropriate to ensure 
the sport is financially viable. We have two contract roles to assist in the delivery of the sport.  One role to ensure all 
events at Nga Puna Wai run smoothly and a second role ensuring the registraƟon of our members up to date, 
including the prinƟng of registraƟon numbers for all.  

These iniƟaƟves have been implemented to reflect a more professional approach as to how we govern and run the 
sport going forward. 

Delivery: 
We organised inter‐club stadia and non‐stadia compeƟƟons, annual provincial championship events and selected 
naƟonal championships events in partnership with AthleƟcs New Zealand, for AthleƟcs New Zealand Club affiliated 
members. 

Due to Covid 19, we modified the setup of numerous events throughout the season to ensure we delivered these 
events within the appropriate gathering restricƟons.  

We supported both the Canterbury Masters AthleƟcs & Canterbury Childrens AthleƟcs AssociaƟon in the delivery of 
their programmes throughout the year. 
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We selected and managed Canterbury teams aƩending naƟonal athleƟcs compeƟƟons in both non‐stadia and stadia 
events.  

We provided financial support to athletes, officials and coaches where possible and appropriate, when travelling to 
venues outside of the Canterbury region. 

We offered educaƟon and training opportuniƟes for coaches and officials to ensure we can successfully organise 
athleƟc events. 

We assisted with the organisaƟon of the primary, combined country & secondary school athleƟc compeƟƟons. 

DescripƟon and QuanƟficaƟon of the EnƟty's Outputs 
During the 2021/2022 compeƟƟon year, AthleƟcs Canterbury provided the following services to the sport and its 
parƟcipants, either directly as the organiser or by assisƟng affiliated athleƟcs clubs in the region: 

Winter programme (April – October) catering for up to 500 compeƟtors aged from seven years to over eighty years: 

We held eleven individual inter‐club cross‐country and road events, including three Canterbury Regional 
Championships. 

We held five inter‐club cross‐country and road relay events.  Due to Covid 19, the NaƟonal Road Relay Championships 
(Takahe to Akaroa Relay) was cancelled.  However, the local event occurred under strict gathering restricƟons. 

We selected and managed regional representaƟve teams that competed in naƟonal cross country, naƟonal road and 
naƟonal road relay championships. 

We supported Secondary School Sport Canterbury in the running of their cross‐country & road championships. 

The Summer programme (October – April) caters for athletes aged from fiŌeen years plus.  CompeƟƟon for children 
aged from seven years to fourteen years is organised by Canterbury Children’s AthleƟc AssociaƟon, with assistance 
from AthleƟcs Canterbury: 

The Opening Day for the track & field season at Nga Puna Wai was on 16th October 2021. 

Five Thursday night community events were planned to be held at Nga Puna Wai during November & early December.  
However, due to the cancellaƟon of the NaƟonal Secondary School Championship (December), only three occurred 
due to lack of interest. 

From late‐October to late‐March, we held fourteen Saturday interclub track and field meeƟngs at Nga Puna Wai.  
Within these meeƟngs we held the following Championship events:  3000m, 5000m, 10000m & steeplechase. 

In early November, we supported a club organised event at their facility at Christchurch Boys High School. 

In late‐November we held the AthleƟcs Canterbury / South Island Combined Events Championships, a two‐day event. 

In late December we held a twilight meeƟng at Nga Puna Wai aimed at all age groups within our region. 

In early January we supported the Mid‐South Canterbury Centre to host the Lovelock Classic in Timaru.  

In mid‐February we held the Canterbury Championship event at Nga Puna Wai, a Friday night / Saturday aŌernoon 
meeƟng.  Within this event we included the Canterbury Masters Track & Field Championship events. 

During the laƩer half of the season, the delivery of our events was modified to ensure we adhered to the Covid 19 
gathering restricƟons.  This included requiring aƩendees to have a Covid 19 vaccinaƟon pass and gathering of under 
100 in each session, excluding officials. 

In early March, 120 athletes aƩended the AthleƟcs NZ Track & Field Championships held in HasƟngs.  AthleƟcs 
Canterbury supported the meeƟng by providing specialist equipment and numerous officials in key roles. 

AthleƟcs Canterbury ran several official educaƟon courses throughout the year parƟcularly concentraƟng on officials to 
be used at the Colgate Games, covering the areas of track events, field events, non‐stadia events and technical. 

Both Secondary and Primary School track & field events were cancelled during the 2021‐2022 season. 

Many of the events organised by AthleƟcs Canterbury and its affiliated clubs catered for members of the public, as well 
as for club athletes.   

Twenty‐five Canterbury athletes were selected to represent New Zealand in several compeƟƟons.  The most notable 
being Tom Walsh (shot put), Lauren Bruce (hammer) and Hamish Kerr (high jump). 



The Notes to the Financial Statements and Reviewer's Report form part of and and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial
Statements.

Performance Report

Statement of Financial Performance
Athletics Canterbury Incorporated
For the year ended 31 March 2022

'Howwas it funded?' and 'What did it cost?'

NOTES 2022 2021

Revenue
Donations, fundraising and other similar revenue 1 112,450 129,461

Fees, subscriptions and other revenue from members 1 120,160 125,041

Revenue from providing goods or services 1 26,259 36,836

Interest, dividends and other investment revenue 1 5,017 7,096

Other revenue 1 223 2,515

Total Revenue 264,110 300,949

Expenses
Volunteer and employee related costs 2 117,009 100,543

Costs related to providing goods or service 2 124,494 131,178

Grants and Donations made 2 32,900 37,100

Other expenses 2 46,766 49,270

Total Expenses 321,170 318,091

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year (57,060) (17,142)
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The Notes to the Financial Statements and Reviewer's Report form part of and and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial
Statements.

Performance Report

Statement of Financial Position
Athletics Canterbury Incorporated
As at 31 March 2022

'What the entity owns?' and 'What the entity owes?'

 

NOTES 31 MAR 2022 31 MAR 2021

Assets
Current Assets

Bank accounts and cash 3 160,661 180,993

Term Deposits 3 354,797 351,589

Debtors and prepayments 3 17,128 25,049

Inventory 3 2,164 1,789
Total Current Assets 534,751 559,420

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 147,490 197,993
Total Non-Current Assets 147,490 197,993

Total Assets 682,240 757,413

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Creditors and accrued expenses 4 19,035 37,334

Employee costs payable 4 13,117 10,931

Unused donations and grants with conditions 4 30,000 30,000
Total Current Liabilities 62,152 78,265

Total Liabilities 62,152 78,265

Total Assets less Total Liabilities (Net Assets) 620,088 679,149

Accumulated Funds
Reserves 6 169,957 169,668

Accumulated surpluses or (deficits) 6 450,131 509,481

Total Accumulated Funds 620,088 679,149
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The Notes to the Financial Statements and Reviewer's Report form part of and and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial
Statements.

Performance Report Athletics Canterbury Incorporated                                                                                                                                                                                             Page 10 of 17

Statement of Cash Flows
Athletics Canterbury Incorporated
For the year ended 31 March 2022

'How the entity has received and used cash'

2022 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Donations, grants and other similar receipts 112,450 120,765

Fees, subscriptions and other receipts from members 98,417 131,742

Receipts from providing goods or services 56,663 79,574

Interest, dividends and other investment receipts 3,375 10,540

Cash receipts from other operating activities 223 9,544

GST (4,313) 3,915

Payments to suppliers and employees (261,750) (274,937)

Donations or grants paid (32,900) (37,100)

Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities (27,836) 44,043

Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities
Receipts/(Payments) of property, plant and equipment 11,457 (6,980)

Cash flows from other investing and financing activities (3,953) 30,694

Total Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities 7,504 23,714

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash (20,332) 67,757

Bank Accounts and Cash
Opening cash 180,993 113,236

Closing cash 160,661 180,993

Net change in cash for period (20,332) 67,757
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Performance Report

Statement of Accounting Policies
Athletics Canterbury Incorporated
For the year ended 31 March 2022

'How did we do our accounting?'

Basis of Preparation

The entity has elected to apply PBE SFR-A (NFP) Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting - Accrual (Not-For-Profit) on the
basis that it does not have public accountability and has total annual expenses equal to or less than $2,000,000. All transactions
in the Performance Report are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The Performance Report is prepared under the
assumption that the entity will continue to operate in the foreseeable future.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The entity is registered for GST. All amounts are stated exclusive of goods and services tax (GST) except for accounts payable
and accounts receivable which are stated inclusive of GST.

Income Tax

Athletics Canterbury Incorporated is wholly exempt from New Zealand income tax having fully complied with all statutory
conditions for these exemptions.

Bank Accounts and Cash

Bank accounts and cash in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash balances and bank balances (including short term
deposits).

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies. Policies have been applied on a consistent basis with those of the previous
reporting period.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation

Revenue Recognition

Grants that are received with conditions attached are initially recognised a liability and are transferred to income when the
conditions have been fulfilled, All Donations are recognised upon receipt.
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Performance Report

Notes to the Performance Report
Athletics Canterbury Incorporated
For the year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021

1. Analysis of Revenue
Donations, grants, and other similar revenue

Donations 5,250 130

Air Rescue Trust - 825

CCC 20,000 12,000

Government Wages Subsidy - 7,030

Grants - 7,160

New Zealand Community Trust 20,000 -

Sargood Bequest 5,000 -

Mainland Foundation 2,200 2,540

Pub Charity - 4,000

Rata Foundation 60,000 61,666

Resilience Grant - 34,110
Total Donations, grants, and other similar revenue 112,450 129,461

Fees, subscriptions and other revenue frommembers
Nga Puna Wai Track Hire 21,515 33,272

Nga Puna Wai Training Fees 8,889 9,465

Registration Fees 46,702 48,085

Affiliation Fees 1,853 1,364

Entry Fees 30,765 22,981

Sanction Fees 10,437 9,874
Total Fees, subscriptions and other revenue frommembers 120,160 125,041

Revenue from providing goods or services
Annual Awards Dinner 1,336 1,103

Equipment Hire 5,847 7,639

Other Revenue 3,520 2,713

Run to Remember fee - 12,000

Signage at NPW 1,562 4,783

Sponsorship 12,299 8,250

Uniform Sales 1,696 348
Total Revenue from providing goods or services 26,259 36,836

Interest, dividends and other investment revenue
Interest Income 5,017 7,096
Total Interest, dividends and other investment revenue 5,017 7,096

Other revenue

Miscellaneous Income
Miscellaneous Income 223 2,515
Total Miscellaneous Income 223 2,515

Total Other revenue 223 2,515
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Notes to the Performance Report

Performance Report

2022 2021

2. Analysis of Expenses
Volunteer and employee related costs

ACC 541 695

Marketing Consultancy 20,159 10,094

Wages 96,310 89,755
Total Volunteer and employee related costs 117,009 100,543

Costs related to providing goods or services
Miscellaneous Expenses 62 1,418

Advertising 1,619 7,407

AGM Expenses 261 229

Annual Awards Dinner Expenses 715 1,041

Audit/Review Fees 2,500 2,800

Bank Fees 385 763

Computer Expenses 640 1,299

Engraving 2,244 1,986

Event Contractor - 5,530

Hire Expenses 54,230 65,493

Insurance 7,984 8,754

Equipment Repairs 10,542 1,902

Medals 2,308 1,490

Medical Services 1,554 869

Meeting Room Hire 413 226

Printing, Stamps & Stationery 4,326 2,975

Race Expenses 25,077 15,109

Telephone & Internet 742 963

Vehicle Expenses 7,385 6,561

Travel Costs 817 3,951

Uniform Purchases 690 411
Total Costs related to providing goods or services 124,494 131,178

Grants and donations made
CCC - Contribution to Equipment 30,000 35,000

Lorna Overend Award 300 300

Officials Subsidy 2,600 1,800
Total Grants and donations made 32,900 37,100

Other expenses
Depreciation 44,815 47,126

General Expenses 1,952 2,143
Total Other expenses 46,766 49,270
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Notes to the Performance Report

Performance Report

2022 2021

3. Analysis of Assets
Bank accounts and cash

Cheque Account (Coachforce) 1,057 151

Cheque Account (Board) 123,906 135,742

Cheque Account (Track & Field) 11,109 3,564

Cheque Account (XC & Road) 24,384 41,405

Westpac Credit Card 205 130
Total Bank accounts and cash 160,661 180,993

Term Deposits
Rabobank Term Deposits 191,763 190,229

SBS Term Deposits 63,049 62,414

Westpac Term Deposits 99,985 98,947
Total Term Deposits 354,797 351,589

Debtors and prepayments
Accrued Interest 2,615 973

Accounts Receivable 10,756 19,417

Prepayments 3,757 4,660
Total Debtors and prepayments 17,128 25,049

Other current assets
Uniforms on Hand 2,164 1,789
Total Other current assets 2,164 1,789

2022 2021

4. Analysis of Liabilities
Creditors and accrued expenses

Accounts Payable 20,021 34,008

GST (986) 3,326
Total Creditors and accrued expenses 19,035 37,334

Employee costs payable
Holiday Pay Accrual 13,117 10,931
Total Employee costs payable 13,117 10,931

Unused donations and grants with conditions
Rata Foundation 25,000 25,000

Tu Manawa 5,000 5,000
Total Unused donations and grants with conditions 30,000 30,000
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Notes to the Performance Report

Performance Report

2022 2021

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Athletics Equipment 147,490 197,993

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 147,490 197,993

                   Opening

            Book Value

                    Additions             Depreciation                  Closing

            Book Value

 Athletics Equipment               197,993                 (5,688)                44,815                 147,490

2022 2021

6. Accumulated Funds
Retained Earnings 507,191 526,623

Current Year Earnings 57,060 (17,142)

Reserves 169,957 169,668

Accumulated Funds 620,089 679,149

Reserves

Description  Opening
Balance 

   Current Year          
Surplus/(Deficit)

Transfer To/(from)
reserves

Closing
Balance

Reserves        

Bill Richards Marathon
Fund

165,956 289       166,247

Thomas Harbut Fund    3.712       3,712

Total Reserves 169,668    289 169,957 

Accumulated Funds 509,481 (57,349)    452,132 

Total 679,149 (57,060)  622,089

The Bill Richards Marathon Fund is to be used for Marathon running expenses incurred by the club or it's athletes

Thomas Harbut Fund is to be used for Officials Travel costs

7. Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

 There was an agreement to repay the Christchurch City Council the cost of surfacing the warm up area. The Final installment of
$30,000 was paid in December 2021.
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7. ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and Guarantees  

There is an agreement to repay the Christchurch City Council the cost of surfacing the warm up area.  The final 
instalment of $30,000 was paid in December 2021 

8. Related ParƟes 

Andrew Stark, Chair of the Board, is also director of AWS PublicaƟons Limited.  AthleƟcs Canterbury Inc used 
the services of AWS PublicaƟons Limited, with all payments being at market value, totalling $7541 (2021:  
$6246).  There was nothing outstanding at year end (2021: $Nil) 

9. Events AŌer the Balance Date  

There were no events that have occurred aŌer the balance date that would have a material impact on the 
Performance Report (Last year‐nil)  

10. Covid 19  

The Covid 19 pandemic resulted in a series of restricƟons on everyday acƟviƟes of New Zealanders, which 
meant AthleƟcs Canterbury had to adapt they way it operated as the rules changes.  Changes to the 
programme and the way we delivered events were made to enable us to offer events during both the winter 
and summer seasons.  The Takahe to Akaroa Relay was assigned the NaƟonal Road Relay Championships, 
however Covid 19 restricƟons meant it was downgraded to a local event, whcih resulted in the event losing 
money.  Similarly, the hire of Nga Puan Wai by schools was affected.  The financial impact of Covid 19 on 
AthleƟcs Canterbury was moderate, even though we were unable to apply to Covid related assistance grants 
(2021 $41,007).  However, it conƟnued to meet its financial commitments. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

Following the REVIEW, this is the conclusion as stated  
in the Performance Report prepared by Smith + Jack Chartered Accountants 

 

REVIEW COMMENTS TO BE ADDED ONCE COMPLETED 
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Track & Field CommiƩee Chairman’s Report 2021 ‐ 2022 Ruth Liong 

During the pre‐season winter months, not much happened at Nga Puna Wai except for a working bee, to 
clear out the unnecessary and broken items from the main equipment shed and container.  Thank you to the 
commiƩee and others for their hard work in doing this long overdue clean up.  We are sƟll waiƟng to have 
the shelves installed and this will create a lot more clear spaces where we can have the space well organised. 

While we have a world class facility, some of our equipment has a limited life span.  A stock take has been 
undertaken as we look to the future as to what will need replacing and when.  While we require a few 
smaller items for this upcoming season, purchasing bigger items and newer technology is a challenge that we 
need to overcome.  Over the next few months we will be looking at ways to fund these purchases. 

AthleƟcs Canterbury is responsible for all bookings of the track & field venue at Ngā Puna, which includes 
schools and community groups.  Along with funds generated from hiring the venue & equipment to schools,  
fees collected from seasonal training card purchases and casual users is an important income stream for the 
sport.  It is important that those using the venue do contribute by paying to train there.  

Season in Review:  

The opening day for senior interclub was held on 16th October 2021.  The online entries is now well 
established and enables a seeded programme to be prepared prior to interclub.  Thank you to Andrew Stark 
for undertaking this task.  This enabled us to allocate available officials to events based on entries.  The 
system works well, however late entries in laned events can create issues in terms of ensuring athletes are in 
the most appropriate race for their ability.  We have looked at not having the opportunity for late entries 
which most other centres enforce.  As our desire is to provide an opportunity for all athletes to compete, we 
have not given in to this yet  

Generally the track events run well, with a good mix of events on offer.  However, running field events 
created significant challenges each week.  Our ability to offer a full selecƟon of events was restrained by the 
number of officials.  If too many events were offered, athletes had fewer aƩempts, which was not popular 
with the athletes.  We are looking at ways in which we can juggle the wishes of athletes and coaches, with 
our ability to hold events. 

Below is the table of aƩendance figures based on those who actually competed: 

DATE(S) M‐U16 W‐U16 M‐U18 W‐U18 M‐U20 W‐U20 SM SW MM MW   

16/10/2021 11 14 23 23 9 8 10 7 6 2 113 

23/10/2021 31 30 25 24 8 8 5 11 10 3 155 

30/10/2021 29 20 44 22 15 8 16 8 11 2 175 

6/11/2021 32 15 44 23 12 9 12 8 11 2 168 

20/11/2021 17 15 20 28 11 8 10 10 3 1 123 

21/11/2021 9 9 16 16 12 5 8 8 2 9 94 

27/11/2021 21 19 29 23 14 8 12 7 8 4 145 

4/12/2021 18 16 28 27 12 7 12 9 13 1 143 

11/12/2021 18 24 26 25 18 10 17 18 13 2 171 

18/12/2022 21 10 10 6 5 4 12 6 3 4 81 

29/12/2022 14 26 6 3 7 1 7 12 13 2 91 

16/01/2022 0 2 17 11 8 9 20 14 9 2 92 

22/01/2022 3 9 13 24 19 12 13 11 9 2 115 

5/02/2022 9 6 28 22 21 8 10 9 20 6 139 

12/02/2022 10 8 37 32 23 17 28 21 14 6 196 

18&19/02/2022 6 17 37 33 26 18 30 17 14 12 210 

26/02/2022 7 13 18 24 9 9 12 8 8 3 111 

AVERAGE 2021/22 16 16 26 23 14 9 15 12 10 4 145 

2020/21:  20 20 26 20 13 9 12 13 10 5 146 

2019/20: 26 20 32 24 18 9 11 9 14 6 169 

2018/19: #(non‐reg = 34)  39 34 18 12 12 9 10 5 173 

#  We online entries the number of non‐registered athletes per week is almost zero as from mid‐November. 
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As can be seen in the table, the bulk of our athletes are under 18, with a slight increase in the number of 
senior men.  Hopefully numbers will conƟnue to increase now that we have fewer restricƟons.  The pre‐
Christmas interclub meeƟngs are usually well aƩended by our secondary school athletes preparing for the 
NaƟonal Secondary School Championships.  Unfortunately this season their event was cancelled due to Covid 
restricƟons.  We look forward to it being able to be held this year in December, in Inglewood.  As 
compensaƟon, AthleƟcs New Zealand did offer a virtual throws compeƟƟon, compiling results from across 
the country.   

The again we offered the twilight meeƟngs, held on Thursday evenings during November and the first 
Thursday in December.  This season we had looked at offering two field events per meeƟng.  These events 
would then not be held on a Saturday within the interclub programme.  We managed to hold three of the 
five meeƟngs. Unfortunately once the cancellaƟon of NaƟonal Secondary School Championships occurred, 
numbers were low and the final two meeƟngs were cancelled. 

This season the South Island / Canterbury Combined Events Championships were held at Nga Puna Wai 
during the weekend of 20th/21st November.  The entry numbers were small, but we combined Canterbury 
Interclub alongside this event. 

Once again Terry Lomax organised the Rhythm & Jumps MeeƟng on the 26th November, held at the 
Christchurch Boys High School training facility.  This was a great meeƟng with a good number in aƩendance. 
There was going to be some coaching opportuniƟes for junior athletes however this didn’t occur but is going 
to be looked at for future years. 

With the NaƟonal Secondary Schools Championships in December being cancelled due to Covid, it was a 
huge loss for our younger athletes.  This event was also meant to be the U18 NaƟonal Championships, as this 
age group missed out on their championships last year.  With no other available date to hold this event, it 
has meant that the last Ɵme our U18 athletes had a major event was back in December 2020. 

On the 18th December we held a relay meeƟng within a Canterbury Children’s meeƟng.  This was a good 
opportunity for clubs, groups of friends to make a relay team and compete.  It was an enjoyable event and 
would be a good regular addiƟon to the season’s calendar. 

The Christmas Cracker Twilight meeƟng was held on the 29th of December, organised with the help of Craig 
Motley based in Timaru.  Numbers were down on last season with 91 aƩending.  It is always uncertain how 
many will aƩend this meeƟng being in the week between Christmas and New Year.  It was enjoyed by those 
who aƩended and is a regular fixture on the calendar.  

The new year started with a successful Lovelock Classic mee�ng held in Timaru on the 8th January 2022. 
Thank you once again to the Lovelock Classic LOC for organising this event.  

The Canterbury Track & Field Championships, were held on Friday night / Saturday aŌernoon (18th/19th 
February).  Due to Covid gathering restricƟons, each session was divided into two groups, with athletes 
selecƟng events from within one group only.  Not ideal, but at least we could offer compeƫon.  For the 
second year, Canterbury Masters held their championships at the same Ɵme.  

The ITM returned to February this season and a FesƟval of AthleƟcs was planned for the Saturday prior to 
the ITM meeƟng.  Unfortunately with the change to Alert Level Red, the FesƟval part of the event had to be 
cancelled.  Without any spectators , no sponsors present and the ITM split into two sessions it meant that 
even while there were good compeƟƟon numbers were Ɵghtly controlled.  The weather wasn’t kind and it 
was wet and windy for the meeƟng. 

In summary, the 2021‐2022 season was a challenging season, starƟng at Covid Alert Level 2 where everyone 
was required to have a vaccine pass to enter the athleƟcs facility.  When the Covid level changed to red in 
January this altered the second half of the season.  The change meant that the number of compeƟtors were 
restricted to 100 at any Ɵme and no spectators were allowed at the facility.  The programme was adapted so 
that the events were held in two sessions ensuring we only had 100 athletes at each session.  This enabled 
the track and field season to conƟnue for the remainder of the season.  Thank you to all those whose work 
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behind the scenes ensured that the season managed to be completed. 

AthleƟcs New Zealand NaƟonal Track and Field Championships, held in HasƟngs sƟll went ahead, despite 
the Covid restricƟons.  However, it required an enormous amount of work to make it happen.  The meeƟng 
was extended from three to four days (3 – 6 March), so the compeƟƟon could be divided into sessions with 
only 100 in each 'bubble' at any given Ɵme.  This year the ANZ Combined Event Championships were also 
held during the NaƟonal Championships.  There were only small fields as a number of athletes chose to 
compete in individual events.  Next year they will return to being held separately. 

Below is a table of team size and medals won at the AthleƟcs New Zealand Championships during the past 
few seasons, followed by a list of our medalists. 

Gold 26 30 21 

Silver  19 19 21 

Bronze 15 19 25 

 2015 2014 2013 

Total Medals: 60 68 67 

2012 

17 

17 

23 

57 

Team Size 70 89 71 ? 

2016 

86 

32 

25 

24 

81 

2017 

65 

31 

23 

14 

68 

2018 

84 

21 

25 

18 

64 

2019 

148 

15 

21 

27 

63 

2020 

130 

32 

22 

32 

86 

2021 

50 

17 

18 

20 

55 

2022 

120 

29 

34 

26 

89 

GOLD MEDALS  Grade Event Performance 

Ethan Bone Under 18 High Jump 2.01m 

Lauren Bruce Senior Hammer 73.34m 

Jonah Cropp Under 18 5000m Track Walk 23:27.83 

Jonah Cropp Under 18 3000m Track Walk 13:50.57 

Rosie EllioƩ Senior 400m 52.59 

Ethan Gow Under 18 Triple Jump 13.88m 

Kiera Hall Under 18 800m 2:12.26 

Jessica Hendren Under 18 High Jump 1.72m 

Rosaria Gibson Under 18 1500m 4:32.42 

Sarah James Para ‐ Open 400m 1:19.76 

Sarah James Para ‐ Open 800m 5:56.57 

Hamish Kerr Senior High Jump 2.15m 

Zack Lappin Para ‐ Open Javelin 25.16m 

Zack Lappin Para ‐ Open 1500m 7:56.33 

Abbey Moody Under 20 Javelin 46.90m 

Jared Neighbours Senior Javelin 60.06m 

Keeley O'Hagan Senior High Jump 1.88m 

Molly O'Reilly Under 18 3000m Track Walk 16:18.25 

Julia Burnham Under 20 100m Hurdles Women 15.07 

Courtney Ruske Senior 3000m Track Walk 13:50.43 

Courtney Ruske Senior 10,000m Track Walk 52:01.69 

ChrisƟna Ryan Senior Heptathlon 3159 pts 

Adam Stack Under 20 High Jump 2.05m 

Ieuan Van der Peet Senior 3000m Steeplechase 9:19.18 

Jordan Veitch Under 18 400m 50.13 

Tom Walsh Senior Shot Put 21.55m 

Natalia Geneblaza, Jessica Vogel, Lily Cockram, Julia Burnham   WU20  ‐ 4 x 100m Relay 48.76 

Ethan Hansen, Liam O'Donnell, Jordon Veitch, Asher PeƩengell‐Brand MU18  ‐  4 x 400m Relay 3:26.66 

SW  ‐  4 x 100m Relay 47.26 Hannah Maloney, Jordyn Blake, Anna Percy, Helena Dinnissen 
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SILVER MEDALS  Grade Event Performance 

Kelsey Berryman Senior Long Jump 6.06m (w1.4) 

Caitlin Bonne Senior Javelin 45.38m 

Katherine Camp Senior 800m 2:05.68 

Beau Brackenridge Under 18 300m Hurdles 39.86 

Rosie EllioƩ Senior 200m 23.41 

Rosie EllioƩ Senior 100m 11.34 (w2.7) 

Natalia Geneblaza Under 18 Triple Jump 11.27m 

Rosaria Gibson Under 18 800m 2:13.75 

George Guerin Senior 3000m Steeplechase 9:27.88 

Tapenisa Havea Senior Discus 53.40m 

Tapenisa Havea Senior Shot Put 15.97m 

Kiera Hall Under 18 1500m 4:32.52 

Sarah James Para ‐ Open 1500m 6:16.67 

Sarah James Para ‐ Open 100m 20.87 

Una Kinajil‐Reding Para ‐ Under 17 Shot Put 8.44m 

Laura Langley Senior 3000m Track Walk 14:04.21 

Laura Langley Senior 10,000m Track Walk 52:18.47 

Zack Lappin Para ‐ Open Discus 35.10m 

Elspeth McGuinness Under 18 3000m 10:02.76 

Levi Murdoch Under 18 High Jump 1.91m 

Liam O'Donnell Under 18 800m 1:55.82 

Liam O'Donnell Under 18 1500m 3:59.76 

Asher PeƩengell‐Brand Under 18 110m Hurdles Men 14.98 

Rorie Poff Para ‐ Under 17 Shot Put 9.08m 

Joshua Price Under 20 110m Hurdles Men 15.90 

Eva Pringle Senior 3000m Steeplechase 10:53.86 

James Sandilands Senior 110m Hurdles Men 15.47 

Julia Burnham Under 20 Long Jump 5.12m (w‐0.1) 

Jessica Vogel Under 20 400m 58.56 

Maddie Wilson Senior Heptathlon 3127 pts 

Marcus Wolton Senior High Jump 2.07m 

MU18  ‐  4 x 100m Relay 43.55 Ethan Hansen, Asher PeƩengell‐Brand, Beau Brackenridge, Jordon Veitch 

Julia Burnham, Jessica Vogel, Georgia‐Rose Dawson, Chloe Hughes WU20  ‐  4 x 400m Relay 4:08.37 

Jordyn Blake, Katherine Camp, Tillie Hollyer, Rosa Twyford SW  ‐  4 x 400m Relay 3:52.03 

BRONZE MEDALS  Grade Event Performance 

Max AƩwell Senior Pole Vault 4.50m 

Max AƩwell Senior Long Jump 6.76m (w2.2) 

Beau Brackenridge Under 18 110m Hurdles Men 15.15 

Montana Brown Para ‐ Open 400m 59.42 

Montana Brown Para ‐ Open 800m 3:19.20 

Montana Brown Para ‐ Open 1500m 6:27.02 

Katherine Camp Senior 1500m 4:20.82 

Piper Everson Under 18 Long Jump 5.03m (w‐0.7) 

Piper Everson Under 18 Triple Jump 11.17m 

Asher PeƩengell‐Brand Under 18 100m 11.00 (w1.4) 

Charlie HazleƩ Under 20 1500m 3:57.44 
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AthleƟcs Canterbury officials / volunteers have made themselves available weekly for interclub and other 
events held around the region.  A large conƟngent also went to ANZ NaƟonal Championships and without 
their experƟse, it would be hard to run an event of this size.  It was good to welcome some new officials 
this season, along with some current athletes who helped out when not compeƟng.  Thank you to all 
officials who without them, we would not be able to offer the events we do.  OfficiaƟng at Nga Puna Wai 
offers challenges, with oŌen windy cold condiƟons which were preƩy unpleasant for everyone.  
EducaƟonal courses have been offered with good aƩendance.  

CongratulaƟons to Trevor SpiƩle for officiaƟng at the Tokyo Olympics.  Also to Trevor and Ruth Liong for 
officiaƟng at the Tokyo Paralympics.  Great to see some of our local officials represenƟng us at on the world 
stage. 

Thank you to Brian Theobald for his work in organising the weekly officials roster, taking care to move 
officials around giving them a lot of experience over all the different event groups. 

The challenges for athleƟcs at Nga Puna Wai  

The biggest challenge we faced all season was not having enough officials to offer all the events our athleƟc 
community would like at any given interclub meeƟng.  This meant we had to modify the programme 
offering fewer field events or restricƟng the number of aƩempts.  Almost weekly we had to request help 
from the spectators to manage events.  Even having enough helpers for duty club was difficult!  How we 
overcome this issue is a challenge.  The Officials Working Group would love to hear of any ideas that you 
may have to tackle this issue.  

The Nga Puna Wai venue is our point of difference from other providers offering running events in 
Canterbury.  If you have any ideas about events that you would like to see there, please approach the track 
and field commiƩee and work together to ensure that athleƟcs is alive and vibrant in Canterbury. 

While change can be challenging, it also can also be exciƟng.  It is a very costly exercise for us to be at Nga 
Puna Wai, due to the expectaƟon from CCC in terms of the required income generated from acƟviƟes held 
there.  We need to do things differently, but our ability to do this successfully depends on the willingness of 
the athleƟc community to help out.  

Are you up for the challenge?  If so, then PLEASE make yourself available to help, either as a volunteer at 
event, as an official or join the track & field commiƩee.  

I’d like to thank the Track and Field CommiƩee who along with Ian Thomas, Canterbury AthleƟcs General 
Manager, work hard in the background ensuring all the necessary tasks and extra are carried out.  Ian is the 
face of our sport and liaises with a large number of groups creaƟng opportuniƟes for all to use the first 
class facility we have. 

ScarleƩ Kirby Under 20 Hammer 28.31m 

Samantha Lascelles Under 18 800m 2:14.10 

Lexi Maples Senior Shot Put 13.21m 

Lexi Maples Senior Hammer 56.67m 

Elspeth McGuinness Under 18 1500m 4:37.38 

Connor Melton Senior 5000m 14:19.93 

Abbey Moody Under 20 Discus 41.64m 

Levi Murdoch Under 18 Long Jump 6.38m (w1.9) 

Kieran Sinclair‐Lomax Under 20 110m Hurdles Men 16.23 

Adam Stack Under 20 Long Jump 6.64m (w‐1.5) 

Niah Williams Under 20 Pole Vault 2.70m 

Joshua Price, Mark Agnew, John Wells, Alizjah Campbell  MU20  ‐  4 x 100m Relay 42.41 

Madeline Thomas, Maia Columbus, Piper Everson, Emily Jackson WU18  ‐  4 x 100m Relay 50.26 

Samantha Lascelles, Alex Rees‐Thomas, Kiera Hall, Rosaria Gibson WU18  ‐  4 x 400m Relay 3:58.82 

Oliver Dunshea, Dylan Forde, Josh Brown, Sam Averill SM  ‐  4 x 400m Relay 3:20.92 
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Athletics Canterbury  -   Ngā Puna Wai Activity Financial Information 
For the year ended 31st March 2022 

Note:  The above informaƟon relaƟng to Ngā Puna Wai has been extracted from the consolidated accounts.  
** This income is not annual income, but dependant on naƟonal events being held at Nga Puna Wai. 

Income   

Weekly Interclub Fees $19,307.09 $22,248.73 

Championship Entry Fees $3,360.58 $2,980.18 

Nga Puna Wai Track Hire $21,514.80 $33,272.45 

Nga Puna Wai Training Fees $8,888.93 $9,465.43 

Equipment Hire $5,050.00 $7,639.04 

DonaƟons $2,000.00 $0.00 

Miscellaneous Income $80.30 $934.35 

Other Revenue $3,519.57 $2,712.98 

Interest Income $80.92 $205.55 

 $63,802.19 $79,458.71 

   

Less OperaƟng Expenses   

Track Hire & Related Costs $31,467.91 $42,263.85 

NPW Storage/Training Fees $11,956.52 $13,217.40 

Equipment Repairs $8,821.52 $1,151.15 

Sport Days Set up/Assist Fee $6,942.39 $5,834.79 

SoŌware Licences $640.07 $1,028.03 

PrinƟng/StaƟonery ‐ Miscellaneous $177.94 $46.09 

Race Expenses $0.00 $57.39 

Travel $0.00 $1,981.64 

Catering $400.08 ‐$0.01 

MeeƟng Room Hire $0.00 $101.74 

Audit Fees $750.00 $858.70 

Bank Fees (EŌpos for interclub) $207.00 $550.74 

General Expenses $154.73 $550.85 

Miscellaneous Expenses $62.18 $0.00 

 $61,580.34 $67,642.36 

   

Gross Profit: $ 2,221.85 $ 11,816.35 

   

less DepreciaƟon $32,300.67 $41,186.17 

   

Net Loss / Profit: ‐$ 30,078.82 ‐$ 29,369.82 
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Mid-South Canterbury Sub-Centre Annual Report for 2021 – 2022 Mark Peters 

For the third and hopefully last season, the effects of COVID‐19 again created challenges and extra work for 
us to hold events with strict limits on numbers aƩending, and the disappointment of major events being 
cancelled. We are very grateful for the support of the clubs and their athletes to work within the guidelines 
that enabled us to put on some very welcome Interclub compeƟƟon during the season.  

 

The annual Arthur Cup and Rose Shield compeƟƟons were well supported by all the local clubs with some 
close compeƟƟon for the trophies. Unfortunately, the Jubilee Shield was cancelled due to sodden ground 
condiƟons and wet weather. Thanks to the Ashburton, Geraldine and Waimate AthleƟcs clubs for hosƟng 
these popular events. We are very grateful for all the parents, helpers and officials who contribute to make 
these events happen. We have a dedicated group of officials who regularly help at Sub Centre events and 
oŌen travel to Canterbury and NaƟonal events, happily passing their knowledge on to our club officials. We 
will conƟnue to work with our Officials convenor, Reg BrockeƩ to push to have some courses held in this 
region to boost the skills of our club officials.  

 

The Friday Night Interclub and Ribbon Night compeƟƟons are well aƩended within the confines of the COVID 
gathering limits. Thanks to the clubs that hosted these events; and to all the parents and officials who help at 
these events – thank you, your assistance is essenƟal to these events taking place. Thanks to Helen and 
CharloƩe who set up the online entries, got the results published online, tabulated the points and organised 
the cerƟficates and trophies. 

 

It was great to see all the local athletes performing well over the past season. CongratulaƟons to all those 
athletes who earned School, Regional and New Zealand Ɵtles; and those selected for Canterbury and New 
Zealand teams. We had some outstanding athletes, coaches and officials nominated for the Trust Aoraki 
South Canterbury Sports Awards and the AthleƟcs Canterbury Sports Awards.  

 

At this year’s Colgate Games in Invercargill, it was exciƟng to see all our clubs perform extremely well over a 
full range of events. The clubs also performed well at the Canterbury Senior and Canterbury Children’s 
events. With the upcoming season’s Colgate Games being held in Timaru, we look forward to seeing more of 
our local club athletes out compeƟng and represenƟng their clubs with disƟncƟon. 

 

Many thanks to Helen Mackle for her secretarial and treasurer’s work, the Sub Centre execuƟve and all the 
club delegates for their contribuƟons to growing athleƟcs in our region. Many thanks to Reg BrockeƩ for all 
his work in organising suitable qualified officials for our many events, and the helpers who setup and put 
away the equipment. The Sub Centre conƟnues to provide a forum for all of our clubs to have a voice in the 
future of athleƟcs in our region. I wish the South Canterbury Amateur AthleƟc Club well in holding their 150th 
celebraƟons aŌer being postponed from last year.  

 

AŌer being delayed from last year, the replacement of the all‐weather track in January will be completed, 
along with the conƟnuing upgrades to the stadium, netball, and hockey areas. 

This coming season’s Colgate Games will be at the all‐weather track in Timaru. We welcome and will be 
needing lots of volunteers from the clubs to assist with the successful and enjoyable running of this very 
popular compeƟƟon. 
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Canterbury Masters Athletic Association Report 2021 - 2022 Andrew Stark 

IntroducƟon: 

Due to Covid restricƟons throughout most of the 2021‐2022 season, we had another challenging year.  The 
CMA AGM was delayed from August unƟl the 12th September 2021.  A small group gathered the St Luke’s 
Union Church Hall in Halswell, with the venue being organised by Lois Anderson.  The future of CMA was 
discussed as the on‐going trend seems to be fewer members joining CMA and fewer Canterbury club masters 
compeƟng at the track & field meeƟngs.  While there were suggesƟons about promoƟng ourselves beƩer, 
offering ‘have a go day’, it required a coordinated approach and a group willing to take on the role. 

The Opening Day of the fourth track & field season at Ngā Puna Wai occurred on 16th October 2021.  There 
were 113 compeƟtors, eight of whom were masters.  This aƩendance was down on previous seasons, but 
being the last weekend of the school holidays, this would have impacted on aƩendance of our younger 
athletes.   

This season we had one event of significance. 

South Island Track & Field Championships: 

This year, the meeƟng was again held in Dunedin.  This Ɵme Otago Masters were able to run with the generic 
programme, with a few minor changes.  Therefore, track events occurred on the Friday night.  There were 
about 70 compeƟtors, with a few coming down from the North Island, due to their event being cancelled due 
to Covid.  Next season the event will be held in Canterbury, but late in January due to the change of date for 
the 2023 NZMA Championships, now being held in early December 2022. 

NZMA Track & Field Championships: 

Due to Covid gathering restricƟon of 100 per group, introduced in early February 2022, the NZMA Track & 
Field Championships due to be held in mid‐March 2022 were cancelled.  While this decision was 
disappoinƟng, it was the most pragmaƟc decision at the Ɵme, given there was no way of knowing what the 
infecƟon rate would have been in mid March.  The rescheduled Ɵme for the 2022 event is now 2‐4 December 
2022, sƟll in Wellington.  There will be no event in March 2023.  The reasons behind this decision were 
outlined in a Special NZMA AGM held on Sunday 22nd May 2022. 

NZMA Board Up‐date: 

Currently I am sƟll on the Board as President.  Given NZMA is only responsible for organising their own track 
& field championships, it has been a relaƟvely quiet year due to the Covid restricƟons impacƟng on which 
events could go ahead.  Both the Indoor and North Island events were cancelled. 

However, work conƟnues in the background to ensure the future of Masters’ athleƟcs within the New 
Zealand summer season, which is becoming very congested during the months of February / March.  
Following a survey to 670 members (139 replies), the NZMA Board received a clear mandate as to the 
direcƟon the organisƟon should go, that is to work more closely with AthleƟcs NZ.  Consequently, the NZMA 
Board has been in discussions with AthleƟcs NZ, reviewing the MOU created in 2016.  The main reason 
behind this iniƟaƟve is to ensure that our championship events have a greater presence and by using AthleƟc 
NZ to promote our events, this is more likely to happen.  More informaƟon about the outcome of the talks 
will be made available ASAP. 

AthleƟcs Canterbury & Nga Puna Wai Sports Hub: 

This season my role was to promote & organise the online entries for interclub and create the seeded Ɵmed 
programme prior to the compeƟƟon day.  The system works well and assists the Centre.  Based on the 
number of entries, they are able to co‐ordinate the available officials to manage the events that are on.   

During the season, Anne & Rick Davison conƟnued to ‘look aŌer’ our maturing group of throwers, by 
organising events either prior to the interclub meeƟngs or on a Wednesday or Sunday.  I know this was 
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greatly appreciated by this group.  It also relieved some of the pressure off the senior interclub throwing 
events.  It also provided an opportunity for athletes from Otago to join in and I know some of our throwers 
headed south to compete there too. 

AthleƟcs Canterbury is always looking for new officials.  It would be great if more CMA members would come 
forward to help, and not just leave it up the ‘regular’ few who already undertake this role. 

CMA 2021 / 2022 Membership Details: 

The previous membership figures are as follows: 160 (2010), 131 (2011), 110 (2012), 97 (2013), 82  (2014), 70 
(2014/2015), 90 (2015/2016).  All of these figures include members of clubs & NZMA.   

Since the MOU in 2016, we have two separate groups.  CMA members who only join NZMA have been as 
follows: 32 (2016/2017), 13 (2017/2018), 22 (2018/2019), 22 (2019/2020), 11 (2020/2021) & 14 
(2021/2022).    

Once again a majority of masters (200+ within clubs) do not come near Nga Puna Wai?  When these non‐
stadia runners are asked why they do not compete, the common answer seems to be that they do not like 
running around in circles.  It would be good to invesƟgate alternaƟve events that could be held at Nga Puna 
Wai, such as mixed relays on a different day of the week, to see that is of interest.  The events could start 
and finish on the track, and involve running around the surrounding area.  I am happy to hear other people’s 
ideas. 

The success of our sport relies on us encouraging ANZ masters to aƩend our events and working together as 
one group. 

CMA 2021 ‐ 2022 Championship Review: 

The major CMA Championship events were again held within the AthleƟcs Canterbury Track & Field 
Championships (Friday night / Saturday aŌernoon).  Given NPW has numerous throwing circles, we were 
able to Ɵmetable masters only events.  We did self‐manage some events, but also had some assistance from 
Centre officials.  Thank you once again to Anne & Rick Davison for coordinaƟng the master’s throwing events. 

CMA Records: 

This season, Janis Russell collated the CMA records.  While Janis does look through meeƟng results for 
records, I remind athletes that it is your responsibility to noƟfy an official if you break a record and ensure 
that all the correct paperwork has been completed.  This includes making sure any implement used in the 
breaking record is checked accordingly.  I am happy to pass on the paperwork to Janis or you can give it 
directly to her.   

A full list of records broken during the 2021 / 2022 season is on the CMA website.  Contact Janis if you think a 
record has been missed.   

Finances: 

The CMA account has very few transacƟons to deal with unless we are hosƟng the South Island 
Championship.  Thank you to Anna Lynch for managing our finances and preparing the final accounts.  The 
completed accounts will be available in August. 

Annual CMA & NZMA Awards Dinner 

The CMA Awards dinner did not occur this season, therefore we combined the annual awards with the AGM 
held in September.  Many of the trophies are event or age specific, consequently they are not awarded.  It 
would be a good idea to review the awards process and see if an alternaƟve method could be adapted.  It is 
also Ɵme to add a masters award to the annual AthleƟcs Canterbury Awards dinner. 
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CMA CommiƩee: 

During the past season, the commiƩee has not met.  However, we oŌen see each other at interclub 
meeƟngs.  Following the NZMA Special AGM in May 2022, it would appear that most Master's Centre are 
struggle to aƩract commiƩee members.  I believe working more closely with the AthleƟcs NZ Centre is a 
beƩer way forward.  Within the non‐stadia part of the season all groups work together.  Perhaps a more 
effecƟve way for us to operate is for the CMA CommiƩee to become part of the AthleƟcs Canterbury’s 
Track & Field CommiƩee.  Who is prepared to step up to the challenge? 

Currently Oceania Masters AthleƟcs are looking for a New Zealand Centre to host the 2023 event.  As yet, 
no Centre has put their hand up to organise this event.  In December 2023, AthleƟcs Canterbury will host 
the NaƟonal Secondary School Championship, hence we are not really in a posiƟon to host the OMA event 
in 2023 as well. 

While CMA / NZMA membership numbers conƟnue to decline, I remind ALL members that any athlete who 
is over 30 and a member of a club is also by default a member NZMA / CMA.  Our challenge is to work out 
how we engage more of this group to be involved and not let it feel like it’s ‘them’ & ‘us’. 

 

If you have any bright ideas and are willing to step up to help … please let me know. 
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Cross Country and Road Committee Annual Report 2021 AnneƩe Campbell 

Last year we started the year with the new challenges presented by “ordinary Covid” and the laƩer part 
2021 has seen us faced with further new challenges, this Ɵme the Delta variant. 

If nothing else, these challenges have meant we have had to become more flexible and responsive, and I 
am again especially proud of the work done to create a fantasƟc Takahe to Akaroa road relay and 
experience the special vibe this evoked.  

I congratulate all those Race Directors who organised and ran events during the 2021 season. To hold them 
at the standard and facing the challenges we did is a real credit to all. Thank you to John Gamblin, Vic 
Gamperle, Daniel Reese, Robyn Perkins, Sandie Gamperle, Peter King, Lockie Campbell, John Marshall, Al 
Cory‐Wright, Lindsay Evans, Mark O’Reilly, and Kevin Knight.  

Thanks too to all the officials who have supported us. I am aware some days were very long ones, and we 
are grateful to you all. Special menƟon to those who took on extra work they to ensure our events met the 
Covid requirements imposed on us. Thank you, all. 

To the members of the Cross Country & Road CommiƩee, our thanks for all your work both behind the 
scenes and on the day to make our events run smoothly.  Much of this work is not immediately visible to 
athletes so it is important we take a moment to thank the team ‐ Robyn Perkins,  Victor Gamperle, John 
Gamblin, Sandie Gamperle, Peter King, Daniel Reese, and Kevin Prendergast, for their work in bringing us 
great events, selecƟng teams, markeƟng the sport, gaining funding, and generally keeping the sport in 
order.  

2021 saw Kevin and Bernie Jago step down from the commiƩee and, having completed the season, Bernie 
step down from being a selector. Bernie and Kevin have made a tremendous contribuƟon to both the 
commiƩee and other roles over many years and on behalf of all of us thank you both. 

Outside our commiƩee I would also like to thank Anne Kennedy, Craig & Shona Brown, Chris Rowe, Diana 
Phipps, and Brian Theobald for their roles in producing results, implemenƟng the points systems, managing 
our trophies, and geƫng us all registered. The sport is very much indebted to you for the work you do. I 
would also like to acknowledge the support of Andrew Stark, the Chair of the AthleƟcs Canterbury Board, 
and Ian Thomas, our General Manager. 

To those who competed during the season we hope you have found it challenging, fun and rewarding. Over 
the season we have endeavoured to create opportuniƟes for all types of runners and to recognise special 
achievements in the newsleƩers, on social media, and through the prize giving held earlier this evening. 
There have been many great runs and I parƟcularly congratulate those who became our winter champions 
for 2021 and / or picked up a parƟcipaƟon award. These awards are hard won.  Well done on achieving 
them. 

This year has seen the most adult adults registered in the past five years.  We have had a significant 
increase in race entries especially the Takahe to Akaroa which was 300% above 2019. The Royal Derby 
created a bit fun on a dull day and racing was hard and fast at our champs.  It is exciƟng to see the growth 
in the last year and be planning for 2022 to grow the sport even more.  I am delighted to have two new 
commiƩee members joining us on our journey and welcome them to our “can do” Canterbury team. 

I hope to see you all back next year ready for another exciƟng season; hopefully this Ɵme it will be the 
racing that challenges us rather than outside influences. 
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NATIONAL TITLE HOLDERS ‐ Non‐Stadia Events 
CongratulaƟons to the following athletes / teams who won  

NaƟonal Titles during the 2021 winter season 

Mountain Running Championships:  

Charlie HazleƩ MU18 

Cross Country:   

Charlie HazleƩ MU18 

Chris Mardon MM50‐54 

Richard BenneƩ MM55‐59 

Peter Cameron MM60‐64 

Tina Cox MW40‐44 

Lisa Brignull MW45‐49 

Cross Country Teams:  

Chris Dryden 

SM 
Caden Shields 

Harry Ewing 

Daniel Balchin 

Cameron Clark 

MU20 
Luke Mitchell 

Max Yanzick 

Ethan Smolej 

Chris Mardon 

MM50‐64 
Richard BenneƩ 

Jason Baillie 

Kevin Muir 

Charlie Hazlett being interviewed after his cross-
country win and below, Chris Dryden (3rd SM 

Cross Country). 
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Canterbury Childrens Athletic Association Report 2021 - 2022 MarƟn ScoƩ 

This year our season was due start on the 16th October 2021, however due to COVID and the associated new 
rules around gatherings, we had to delay our start by 2 weeks. 

AŌer many discussions with Ian and in turn his discussions with the Council it was agreed we could get our 
season under way on the 30th October.  This was done operaƟng under level 2 protocols requiring a vaccine 
pass. No pass meant no entry, a big thank you to the clubs for facilitaƟng this.  

It all began with club bubbles and a change to the programme with the loss of relays.  Considering the 
situaƟon we had 352 happy children turn up for opening day with the numbers consistently rising over the 
first half of the season.  Our last meeƟng before Christmas was the 18th December.  This we called our Relay 
meeƟng, which included medleys for all ages, mixed relays over various distances and included Senior relays. 
Once again we ran our ever popular 1500m Steeplechase for Grade 10 and up.  The weather was perfect and 
the water was cold.  The day was a roaring success, we hope to be able to do it again next season.  

Events took a turn for the worse in the second half of the season.  To be honest, what we faced aŌer the 
break was preƩy horrendous with the country at a red seƫng and only 100 athletes allowed inside the black 
fence.  Thankfully this excluded officials and parent helpers.  If it had not been for the hard work put in by 
the CCAA execuƟve (including Shona) it would have been easy to cancel the second half of the season.  All of 
us took the view we needed to get the something up and running.  We are very thankful to Andrew for 
allowing broader parƟcipaƟon in the aŌernoon to give the athletes more choices.  

We tested the water by running a pre‐entered event on the 29th January, with two 90 minute sessions for 
grades 11/12 and 13/14.  This worked well, so we then integrated the other ages using the 90 minute format. 
Moving forward we made use of the grass track and faciliƟes in the pracƟce area.  This gave us 4 sessions 
over the morning, 2 in the arena and 2 out the back, 9am to 11am and 11:30am to 1:30pm.  These were all 
pre entered events and capped at 100 athletes.  We rotated the age groups weekly so everyone got a run on 
the all weather track.  The weather did not always play its part, but we conƟnued in the rain with further 
modificaƟons to events available.  And so it conƟnued for the rest of the season. 

If nothing else it taught our children to be flexible and adaptable and we think they have done extremely well 
at adapƟng to new situaƟons.  

The South Canterbury clubs conƟnued to hold their own Friday evening events.  These meeƟngs are a great 
iniƟaƟve, and it is good to hear they have been well supported. 

Our registraƟon numbers were slightly down on last season which was expected considering the situaƟon. 
This season we had a total of 613 athletes (329 Females, 284 Males). 

This season we sadly lost the Lions club.  Their purple presence was missed.  However, it was good to see 
that many of their athletes transferred to new clubs.  

With the relaƟve success of the season we were determined to hold our championships under the red 
seƫngs.  The execuƟve commiƩee met with Ian, and Ian met with the council again.  Craig put together a 
programme with four 2hr sessions starƟng at 9am and finishing at 6.30pm on both days.  As we had to cap 
session numbers to 100 we had athletes on waiƟng lists and we do understand that some athletes regreƞully 
missed out.  The changing of entries in and out was challenging.  415 athletes eventually took part over the 
weekend and ran in good spirits, although it was noted that the atmosphere in the arena was lacking.  Due to 
the restricƟons, we were unable to have spectators, the only way in was to help, we’ve never had so many 
helpers!  Most people understood the situaƟon and accepted it and we acknowledge the work clubs had to 
do to communicate changes to their members.  It was wonderful to see teams from out of town make it to 
our champs, especially Greymouth.  

The appreciaƟon for our efforts in the form of emails, food and messages via Facebook were really 
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welcomed and it just made everything worth it to see happy children. 

Unfortunately, no representaƟve teams were selected as all compeƟƟons were cancelled in late January, due 
to COVID protocols.  A virtual IP compeƟƟon did go ahead with many centres taking part.  This was 
parƟcularly popular with smaller centres who do not have big teams.  Canterbury decided not to get involved 
with this aŌer consultaƟon with the clubs and athletes.  This was a welcome break for all our volunteers who 
were in need of a rest.  

The big news is that the Interprovincial event will no longer conƟnue in its current format.  The main reason 
for this is the prohibiƟve cost to each province to hold it and cost to each province to send a team.  Moving 
forward we are working with AthleƟcs NZ to see what their plan is for the future. 

In terms of end of season compeƟƟons, Canterbury will discuss with Otago, Southland and Tasman in the 
coming months to explore the delivery of an event for all ages moving forward. 

A huge thank you to our sponsors Shoe Clinic and Asics for their conƟnued involvement and support.  

To Ian, our inside man, always a pleasure and a laugh.  Thank you. 

To all the parents, thank you for geƫng on board with these changes and ensuring your athletes got to and 
from compeƟƟons. 

To the officials, the red shirts, and the volunteer parents who come out on a Saturday morning to fulfill your 
clubs duƟes, thank you.  Without your support this year we would not been able to conƟnue with the 
season.   

To Gail, Shona, Craig, Sue and Steff you are awesome and it is amazing that you conƟnue to take on this role 
with such enthusiasm and commitment.  A special thanks and goodbye to Steff, our Treasurer since 2008.  
We cannot thank you enough. We will miss your presence and experƟse. We will miss the humour and 
wisdom, that you have brought to our meeƟngs.  We wish you all the best. 

To Chris Rowe, thank you for all the work you do with registraƟons, lost numbers and entering results.  Your 
good humour is infecƟous, in a good way, not like COVID. 

To the club captains who represent their clubs at every commiƩee meeƟng with your ideas and concerns, 
Thank you for your efforts.  Your input is important for the sport to conƟnue. 

My second year as President has been very, very challenging, but also saƟsfying when I see the children 
achieving their PB’s.  Bring on season 2022‐2023, we are looking forward to next season and a return to our 
normal Saturday program. 
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Senior Men  Club Date Record 

100m Tiaan Whelpton Old Boys United 22/01/22 10.18 

200m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 05/03/95 20.51 

400m Shaun Farrell Papanui Toc H 07/03/98 46.09 

800m Shaun Farrell Papanui Toc H 28/02/98 1:45.45 

1000m Standard     2:21.50 

1500m Michael Gilchrist Technical 01/04/83 3:38.4H 

One Mile Malcolm Hicks University 27/01/12 3:59.87 

3000m Paul Smith Olympic 16/01/93 7:57.90 

5000m Rodney Dixon University 21/01/78 13:25.2H 

10000m David Burridge University 05/02/87 28:06.16 

1 Hour Track Tony Good New Brighton 08/03/75 19422m 

110m Hurdles (1067mm) Nicholas Bolton Old Boys United 18/02/98 14.47 

400m Hurdles (914mm) Wayne Paul Papanui/Redwood 26/03/86 50.70 

3000m Steeplechase (914mm) Peter Renner New Brighton 29/08/84 8:14.05 

4 x 100m Relay Old Boys United   11/02/95 40.51 

4 x 200m Relay Old Boys United   27/02/93 1:26.6H 

4 x 400m Relay Old Boys United   13/02/93 3:10.20 

Long Jump John Hunt South Canterbury 13/04/85 7.55m 

Triple Jump MaƩhew Walsh Old Boys United 25/05/19 15.58m 

High Jump Hamish Kerr Old Boys United 20/02/21 2.31m 

Pole Vault Kieran McKee Toc H 25/02/84 5.02m 

Shot Put (7.26kg) Tomas Walsh South Canterbury 05/10/19 22.90m 

Discus Throw (2.0kg) Christopher Mene Papanui Toc H 25/02/01 56.25m 

Javelin Throw (800gm) John Stapylton‐ Smith Papanui Toc H 18/02/89 78.14m 

Hammer Throw (7.26kg) Warrick Nichol Technical 25/01/74 63.72m 

Decathlon Max Attwell Old Boys United 7-8/07/22 7538 points 

Pentathlon Standard     TBA 

3000m Track Walk Standard     11:55.0 

5000m Track Walk Graham SeaƩer Old Boys / Te Kura 01/02/86 20:33.0 

20000m Track Walk Graham SeaƩer Old Boys / Te Kura 09/02/80 1:30:17.3 

ATHLETICS CANTERBURY TRACK AND FIELD RECORDS as at 01/07/2022 

Note:  All NEW records set during the 2021 / 2022 season appear as BOLD and Italic.   H = hand timed 
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Men Under 20  Club Date Record 

100m David Ambler Old Boys United 13/03/09 10.35 

200m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 06/03/93 20.95 

400m Shaun Farrell Papanui Toc H 22/07/94 46/31 

800m Clyde McIntosh Papanui Toc H 14/02/98 1:49.35 

1000m Gregory Nicholls Christchurch Avon  04/03/95  2:25.8H 

1500m Chanel Muir Christchurch Avon 06/03/22 3:44.86 

3000m Richard Lindroos Old Boys United 21/01/89 8:10.47 

5000m Richard Lindroos Old Boys United 26/11/89 14:05.83 

110m Hurdles (990mm) James Sandilands South Canterbury 13/03/15 13.92 

400m Hurdles (914mm) Mark Edmond Old Boys United 03/03/96 52.66 

3000m Steeplechase (914mm) Peter Renner New Brighton 11/03/78 8:51.8H 

4 X 100m Relay Standard     43.44 

  (Toc H 4x110 yd   14/12/68 43.5H) 

4x400m Relay Avon   20/02/77 3:21.8H 

Long Jump Jesse Bryant University 15/03/12 7.49m 

Triple Jump MaƩhew Walsh Papanui Toc H 17/02/18 14.67m 

High Jump Glenn Howard Papanui Toc H 03/02/96 2.23m 

Pole Vault Tim McKee Papanui Toc H 07/03/10 4.61m 

Shot Put (6.00kg) Tomas Walsh South Canterbury 02/07/11 20.56m 

Discus Throw (1.75kg) Christopher Mene Papanui Toc H 17/01/91 55.54m 

Javelin Throw (800gm) Andrew Harrison Papanui Toc H 17/01/96 71.74m 

Hammer Throw (6.00kg) Michael Hancock Old Boys United 29/01/05 61.10m 

Decathlon Kieran Fowler Geraldine 2‐3/03/07 7222 pts 

Pentathlon Standard     TBA 

3000m Track Walk Andrew Causer Christchurch Avon 16/03/91 12:25.9 

10000m Track Walk Daniel Lord South Canterbury 20/02/10 46:37.26 

     

Men Under 19  Club Date Record 

100m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 07/03/93 10.70 

200m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 06/03/93 20.95 

400m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 30/01/93 46.38 

800m Clyde McIntosh St Andrews 28/12/94 1:51.4H 

1000m Gregory Nicholls Christchurch Avon  12/03/95  2:25.8H 

1500m Nicholas Moulai Papanui Toc H 23/01/18 3:47.05 

3000m Nicholas Moulai Papanui Toc H 03/12/16 8:16.77 

5000m David Burridge University 17/01/81 14:09.6H 

110 m Hurdles (990mm) James Sandilands South Canterbury 13/03/15 13.92 

400m Hurdles (914mm) Hayo van Gestel Avon 09/03/86 54.27 

3000m Steeplechase (914mm) Peter Renner New Brighton 11/03/78 8:51.8 
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Men Under 19 (conƟnued) Club Date Record 

4 x 100m Relay Standard     43.44 

  (Toc H 4 x 110 yds)   14/12/68 43.5H) 

4 x 400m Relay Ashburton   18/02/79 3:23.2H 

Long Jump Jesse Bryant University 15/03/12 7.49m 

Triple Jump MaƩhew Walsh Papanui Toc H 03/02/18 14.49m 

High Jump Glenn Howard Papanui Toc H 12/02/94 2.17m 

Pole Vault Alex Mander Papanui Toc H 21/02/16 4.50m 

Shot Put (6.00kg) Tomas Walsh South Canterbury 18/03/10 18.82m 

Discus Throw (1.75kg) Christopher Mene Papanui Toc H 16/02/91 55.54m 

Javelin Throw (800gm) Andrew Harrison Papanui Toc H 28/01/96 64.20m 

Hammer Throw (6.00kg) Michael Hancock Old Boys United 29/01/05 61.10m 

Decathlon Kieran Fowler Geraldine 2‐3/03/07 7222 pts 

Pentathlon Standard     TBA 

3000m Track Walk Andrew Causer Christchurch Avon 16/03/91 12:25.9H 

10000m Track Walk Daniel Lord South Canterbury 20/02/10 46:37.26 

Men Under 18  Club Date Record 

100m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 27/10/91 10.83 

200m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 15/01/92 21.37 

400m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 30/01/93 46.38 

800m Clyde McIntosh St Andrews 28/12/94 1:51.4 

1500m Nicholas Moulai Papanui Toc H 23/01/18 3:47.05 

3000m Nick Moulai Papanui Toc H 03/12/16 8:16.77 

5000m Hayden McLaren New Brighton 12/02/05 14:32.56 

110m Hurdles (914 mm) James Sandilands South Canterbury 05/04/14 13.84 

300m Hurdles (838mm) Mark Edmond Old Boys United 04/12/94 37.35 

2000m Steeplechase (914mm) Peter Renner Cashmere 29/01/77 5:51.2H 

2000m Steeplechase (838mm) Standard     5:45.00 

4 x 100m Relay St Andrews   12/02/84 43.62 

4 x 400m Relay Ashburton   18/02/79 3:23.2H 

Long Jump Jessie Bryant University 15/03/12 7.49m 

Triple Jump MaƩhew Walsh Papanui Toc H 03/12/16 14.17m 

High Jump Glenn Howard Papanui Toc H 12/02/94 2.17m 

Pole Vault Tim McKee Papanui Toc H 09/02/08 4.35m 

Shot Put (5.00kg) Tomas Walsh South Canterbury 12/12/09 20.21m 

Discus Throw (1.50kg) Nikolas Kini Old Boys United 26/10/19 60.60m 

Javelin Throw (700gm) Andrew Harrison Papanui Toc H 05/12/93 63.88m 

Hammer Throw (5.00kg) Michael Hancock Old Boys United 15/02/04 65.10m 

Octathlon Standard     5945 pts 

3000m Track Walk Andrew Causer Christchurch Avon 16/03/91 12:25.9 
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Men Under 17  Club Date Record 

100m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 02/12/90 10.88 

200m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 02/12/90 21.52 

400m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 30/03/91 48.33 

800m Clyde McIntosh St Andrews 28/12/94 1:51.4H 

1500m EllioƩ Drayton Avon 15/01/83 3:54.4H 

3000m Nick Moulai Papanui Toc H 03/12/16 8:16.77 

110m Hurdles (914mm) James Sandilands South Canterbury 23/03/13 13.88 

300m Hurdles (838mm) MarƟn Swart Christchurch BHS 29/03/09 39.07 

2000m Steeplechase (914mm) Hayden McLaren New Brighton 24/01/06 6:13.36 

4 x 100m Relay ChCh Boys High School   23/02/08 44.45 

4 x 400m Relay Standard     3:31.0H 

Long Jump Jesse Bryant University 11/12/11 7.13m 

Triple Jump Ethan Gow Selwyn 07/11/20 13.67m 

High Jump Glenn Howard Papanui Toc H 09/04/92 2.05m 

Pole Vault Tim McKee Papanui Toc H 01/12/07 4.30m 

Shot Put (5.00kg) Tomas Walsh South Canterbury 13/12/08 18.38m 

Discus Throw (1.50kg) Charlie Gamble Papanui Toc H 06/03/13 59.00m 

Javelin Throw (700gm) Guy Archibald Christ's College 24/03/07 61.71m 

Hammer Throw (5.00kg) Richard Mavor Old Boys United 13/03/04 52.61m 

Octathlon Kieran Fowler Geraldine 13‐14/07/05 5929 pts 

3000m Track Walk Daniel Lord South Canterbury 02/02/08 12:50.34 

Men Under 16  Club Date Record 

100m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 02/12/90 10.88 

200m Mark Keddell Old Boys United 02/12/90 21.52 

400m Shaun Farrell Papanui Toc H 02/02/91 49.24 

800m Shaun Farrell Papanui Toc H 23/03/91 1:56.19 

1500m Daniel PrescoƩ Selwyn 12/02/22 3:59.21 

3000m Nick Moulai Papanui Toc H 21/11/15 8:40.21 

100m Hurdles (838mm) Christopher Wiremu Christchurch BHS 12/12/09 13.24 

300m Hurdles (838mm) Standard     40.64 

2000m Steeplechase (762mm) Standard     6:16.30 

4 x 100m Relay Papanui Toc H   18/02/90 45.87 

Long Jump Kieran Fowler Geraldine 13/07/05 6.90m 

Triple Jump Callum Stewart Old Boys United 04/12/16 13.37m 

High Jump Glenn Howard Papanui Toc H 21/03/92 2.01m 

Pole Vault Tim McKee Papanui Toc H 25/11/06 3.91m 

Shot Put (5.00kg) Kieran Fowler Geraldine 13/07/05 16.43m 

Discus Throw (1.25kg) Jordan Pinnock Greymouth 17/11/12 56.25m 

Discus Throw (1.50kg) Charlie Gamble North Canterbury 11/02/12 51.56m 

Javelin Throw (700gm) Mathew McKellar Christ's College 08/11/14 54.99m 

Octathlon Kieran Fowler Geraldine 13‐14/07/05 5929 pts 

3000m Track Walk Jonah Cropp Sumner 20/03/21 13:39.77 

2000m Steeplechase (838mm) Standard     6:07.00 
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Senior Women  Club Date Record 

100m Anna Percy Old Boys United 04/12/21 11.40 (w1.8) 

200m Caro Hunt Old Boys United 22/07/00 23.52 

400m Rosie EllioƩ Old Boys United 05/03/22 52.59 

800m Angela Smit University 10/07/15 1:59.06 

1000m Angela PeƩy University 15/08/15 2:37.28 

1500m Angela PeƩy University 29/06/17 4:07.83 

One Mile Sue Bruce New Brighton 15/01/83 4:37.89 

3000m Sue Bruce New Brighton 05/02/85 8:56.2H 

5000m Mary O'Connor University 21/01/84 15:49.3H 

10000m Anne Hannam University 09/12/89 32:18.53 

100m Hurdles (838mm) Fiona Morrison Old Boys United 03/04/16 13.16 

400m Hurdles (762mm) Rebecca Wardell Old Boys United 23/03/03 56.25 

3000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 21/03/15 9:41.42 

4 x 100m Relay Old Boys United   05/02/00 46.00 

4 x 400m Relay Technical   20/02/83 3:49.40 

Long Jump Jayne Mitchell Old Boys United 26/11/88 6.55m 

Triple Jump Jayne Mitchell Old Boys United 23/02/91 13.00m 

High Jump Keeley O'Hagan Old Boys United 05/03/22 1.88m 

Pole Vault Melina Hamilton Old Boys United 12/04/03 4.40m 

Shot Put (4.00kg) Valerie Young Technical 23/10/64 16.71m 

Discus Throw (1.00kg) Adrienne Lynn Papanui Toc H 12/03/95 56.10m 

Javelin Throw (600gm) Kaye Nordstrom Papanui Toc H 16/02/92 60.84m 

Hammer Throw (4.00kg) Lauren Bruce South Canterbury 20/05/21 74.61m 

Heptathlon Joanne Henry South Canterbury 29/2‐1/3/92 6278 pts 

Decathlon Standard     TBA 

3000m Track Walk Courtney Ruske Christchurch Avon 24/01/15 13:36.31 

5000m Track Walk Courtney Ruske Christchurch Avon 31/10/15 23:23.97 

10000m Track Walk Courtney Ruske Christchurch Avon 13/07/14 49:40.78 
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Women Under 20  Club Date Record 

100m Standard     11.74 

  (Beverley Peterson Technical 18/01/75 11.5) 

200m Maia Broughton Old Boys United  21/11/21  23.96 (w4 0.8) 

400m Joanna BeckeƩ Technical 26.01.75 53.42 

800m Angela Smit North Canterbury 07.07.10 2:03.87 

1000m Rosa Flanagan University 15.08.15 2:50.62 

1500m Rosa Flanagan University 06.03.15 4:14.19 

3000m Sue Bruce New Brighton 20.01.84 9:05.95 

5000m Rosa Flanagan University 15.12.15 15:52.10 

100m Hurdles (838mm) Joanne Henry South Canterbury 16.02.91 14.01 

400m Hurdles (762mm) Anna Percy Old Boys United 09.07.17 58.60 

2000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 23.11.13 6:33.97 

3000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 21.03.15 9:41.42 

4 x 100m Relay Standard     47.94 

  (Technical   16.03.74 47.8H) 

4 x 400m Relay Standard     3:55.0H 

Long Jump Joanne Henry South Canterbury 14.02.91 6.36m 

Triple Jump BridgeƩe Pateman South Canterbury 08.03.98 12.60 

High Jump Angela Pule New Brighton 21.03.81 1.80m 

  Emma Sutherland Old Boys United 05.01.13 1.80m 

Pole Vault Eliza Meekings Papanui Toc H 06.02 21 3.60m 

Shot Put (4.00kg) Tapensia Havea South Canterbury 06/03/22 15.97m 

Discus Throw (1.00kg) Tapensia Havea South Canterbury 06/03/22 53.40m 

Javelin Throw (600gm) Kaye Nordstrom Papanui Toc H 06.03.87 49.04m 

Hammer Throw (4.00kg) Lauren Bruce South Canterbury 02.04.17 59.53 

Heptathlon Joanne Henry South Canterbury 16/17.03.91 6092 pts 

3000m Track Walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 22.01.10 13:41.52 

5000m Track Walk  Courtney Ruske ChCh‐Avon 13.07.14 24:11.5(h) 

10000m Track Walk Courtney Ruske ChCh‐Avon 13.07.14 49:40.78 

Women Under 19  Club Date Record 

100m Standard     11.74 

  (Beverley Peterson Technical 18.01.75 11.5H) 

200m Standard     24.44 

  (Beverley Peterson Technical 17.03.74 24.2H) 

400m Joanna BeckeƩ Technical 26.01.75 53.42 

800m Angela Smit North Canterbury 07.07.10 2:03.87 

1500m Rosa Flanagan University 26.02.15 4:15.86 

3000m Rosa Flanagan University 23.01.15 9:07.85 

100m Hurdles (838mm) Fiona Morrison Old Boys United 26.02.06 14.41 

400m Hurdles (762mm) Anna Percy Old Boys United 01.04.16 60.76 

2000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 23.11.13 6:33.97 

3000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 07.02.15 9:48.39 
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Women Under 19 (conƟnued)  Club Date Record 

4 x 100m Relay Standard     47.94 

  (Technical   16/03/74 47.8) 

4 x 400m Relay Standard     3:55.0 

Long Jump Susan Burnside Technical 19/12/73 6.19m 

Triple Jump BridgeƩe Pateman South Canterbury 08/03/98 12.60m 

High Jump Angela Pule New Brighton 21/03/81 1.80m 

Pole Vault Eliza Meekings Papanui Toc H 06/02/21 3.60m 

Shot Put (4.00kg) Jaidyn Busch Old Boys United 06/03/20 14.95m 

Discus Throw (1.00kg) Adrienne Lynn Papanui Toc H 14/02/91 50.30m 

Javelin Throw (600gm) Kaye Nordstrom Papanui Toc H 06/03/87 49.04m 

Hammer Throw (4.00kg) Lauren Bruce South Canterbury 05/03/16 58.37m 

Heptathlon Joanne Henry South Canterbury 18‐19/02/89 5136 pts 

3000m Track Walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 10/11/07 14.21.09 

5000m Track Walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 12/07/07 24:20.26 

10000m Track Walk Courtney Ruske Christchurch Avon 17/12/11 52:42.7 

Women Under 18  Club Date Record 

100m Standard     11.74 

  (Beverley Peterson Technical 18/01/75 11.5H) 

200m Standard     24.44 

  (Beverley Peterson Technical 17/03/74 24.2H) 

400m KaƟe Johnstone South Canterbury 10/02/01 55.32 

800m Rachael Rowberry Papanui Toc H 02/02/92 2:06.42 

1500m Sue Bruce New Brighton 15/02/81 4:21.18 

3000m Sue Bruce New Brighton 11/02/81 9:19.76 

100m Hurdles (762mm) Georgina Allison North Canterbury 14/12/08 14.11 

300m Hurdles (762mm) Georgina Allison North Canterbury 14/12/08 43.16 

2000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 23/11/13 6:33.97 

3000m Steeplechase (762mm) Rosa Flanagan University 22/03/14 9:56.98 

4 x 100m Relay Standard     47.94 

  (Technical   16/03/74 47.8H) 

Long Jump Susan Burnside Technical 19/12/73 6.19m 

Triple Jump BridgeƩe Pateman South Canterbury 09/03/97 12.45m 

High Jump Angela Pule New Brighton 21/03/81 1.80m 

Pole Vault Julia Brown North Canterbury 11/03/05 3.50m 

Shot Put (3.00kg) Tapenisa Havea Lions AC 10/04/21 17.27m 

Discus Throw (1.00kg) Tapensia Havea South Canterbury 06/03/22 53.40m 

Javelin Throw (600gm) Kaye Nordstrom Papanui Toc H 22/03/86 46.40m 

Javelin Throw (500gm) Standard     53.00m 

Hammer Throw (3.00kg) Lauren Bruce South Canterbury 06/12/14 63.67m 

Heptathlon Joanne Henry South Canterbury 18‐19/02/89 5136 pts 

3000m Track Walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 10/11/07 14:21.09 

5000m Track Walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 12/07/07 24:20.26 

Shot Put (4.00kg) Tapensia Havea South Canterbury 06/03/22 15.97m 
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Women Under 17  Club Date Record 

100m Maia Broughton Selwyn 01/12/17 12.13 

200m Standard     24.44 

  (Beverley Peterson Technical 17/03/74 24.2) 

400m Anna Rowberry Papanui Toc H 10/04/92 56.30 

800m Angela Smit North Canterbury 08/07/08 2:08.15 

1500m Sue Bruce New Brighton 15/02/81 4:21.18 

3000m Sue Bruce New Brighton 11/02/81 9:19.76 

100m Hurdles (762mm) Mackenzie Keenan Old Boys United 26/03/11 14.14 

300m Hurdles (762mm) Kelsey Berryman Old Boys United 30/03/08 44.06 

2000m Steeplechase (762mm) Liliana Braun Port Hills 03/12/17 6:59.55 

4x 100m Relay Standard     50.64 

  (Technical   28/12/74 50.5) 

Long Jump Susan Burnside Technical 19/12/73 6.19m 

Triple Jump Phoebe Lester Port Hills 19/03/05 11.52m 

High Jump Angela Pule New Brighton 21/03/81 1.80m 

Pole Vault Julia Brown North Canterbury 11/03/05 3.50m 

Shot Put (3.00kg) Tapenisa Havea Lions AC 06/03/19 15.92m 

Discus Throw (1.00kg) VioleƩe Perry Old Boys United 07/03/20 46.54m 

Javelin Throw (500gm) Caitlin Bonné Papanui Toc H 13/02/16 43.70m 

Hammer Throw (3.00kg) Lauren Bruce South Canterbury 14/12/13 60.17m 

Heptathlon Joanne Henry South Canterbury 19‐20/03/88 4743 pts 

3000m Track Walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 28/10/06 14:33.70 

5000m Track walk Kate NewiƩ Port Hills 18/11/06 24:41.70 

     

Girls Under 16  Club Date Record 

100m Maia Broughton Selwyn 01/12/17 12.13 

400m Anna Hayward South Canterbury 05/03/16 56.39 

800m Angela Smit North Canterbury 30/11/05 2:10.48 

1500m Sue Bruce New Brighton 10/02/80 4:28.8H 

3000m Rosa Flanagan University 11/02/12 9:46.56 

80m Hurdles (762mm) Rowena Welford South Canterbury 18/11/89 11.4H 

100m Hurdles (762mm) CharloƩe HasƟngs Papanui Toc H 05/03/93 14.55 

300m Hurdles (762mm) Olivia Burnham Old Boys United 04/12/16 44.48 

4 x 100m Relay Standard     50.64 

  (Technical   28/12/74 50.5H) 

Long Jump Annabelle Coates Old Boys United 26/03/05 5.76m 

Triple Jump Phoebe Lester Port Hills 19/03/05 11.52m 

High Jump Jessica Hendren North Canterbury 13/12/20 1.77m 

Pole Vault         

Shot Put (3.00kg) Tapenisa Havea Lions AC 06/03/19 15.92m 

Discus Throw (1.00kg) Adrienne Lynn Papanui Toc H 28/01/89 41.24m 

Javelin Throw (500gm) Caitlin Bonné Papanui Toc H 13/02/16 43.70m 

Hammer Throw (3.00kg) Lauren Bruce South Canterbury 28/02/13 55.67m 

2000m Track Walk Courtney Ruske Christchurch Avon 05/12/09 9:58.5H 




